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ISSION STATEMENT

Capital Senior Living Corporation is committed to providing quality
housing and services based on the highest standards of excellence
in the industry. Our goal is to enrich the daily lives of our senior
residents by providing an environment that stimulates them physically,
mentally, and emotionally. All of our communities and facilities
offer a relaxed atmosphere of warmth and caring that promotes
companionship among residents and staff. Every community is
staffed by qualified and highly trained employees who possess a
personal commitment to serve the senior resident. The on-site staff
ensures the highest quality lifestyle possible by providing regular
social programs, nutritious meals, housekeeping, transportation,
security and appropriate health care. All residents are treated with

dignity and respect—just as we ourselves would like to be treated.



CAPITAL SENIOR LIVING CORPORATION

T ABLE OF CONTENTS

2  shareholders’ Letter

4 Review of Operations

9  selected Financial Data
10 Management’s Discussion and Analysis
20  Market for Capital Senior Living Corporation’s Stock
21 Report of Independent Auditors

27 Consolidated Financial Statements

F INANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

NET INCOME EARNINGS PER SHARE
$Millions 1998
$16.0 $0.20 B
$14.0 $0.175 |
$12.0 $0.15 B
$10.0 B $0.125 B
$8.0 B $0.10 |
$6.0 B $0.075 B
$4.0 | $0.05 |
$2.0 B $0.025 B
A | I |
94 95 96 97 98 1st 2nd 3rd 4th

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter



CAPITAL SENIOR LIVING CORPORATION

T O OUR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS:

As a naional developer and povider of senior Ning
sewices,we fumish housing and carfor nealy 5,700
residents in 34 comuomities in 17 stees.With our stong
balance sheet and deand aperienced mangement
team,we ae well-positioned to bild on this bunddion
and meet theising demanddr afordable, quality senior
living cae. Now, over a year after our initial puir offering,

we hare exceeded ¥en our most optimisticaals.
1998 was an gcellent year, even by our standads:

s As of 1998 yarend we completed our senth
consecutie year of pofitability. Our financial esults
shawved signifcant inceases wer 1997 and demonsted
our aility to effectively operte while executing on
our rultiple growth stiategies. There was a 140 peent
increase in net incomef 1998 wer pio formanet

income br 1997.

s The Compawp curently has 34 commnities under
constuction or deelopmentwhich will have a cpacity
of approximately 5,000 esidentsjncluding 27 ne&v
Waterford Comnunities with a cpacity of gproximately
3,900 esidentsThis development pipeline is $eduled
to be completed tbhughout 1999 and 2000.

s The Compap is expanding 10 gisting comnunities,
which are sdheduled to be completed dng 1999
and 2000adding gproximately 560 adlitional residents

to our total caacity.

s We completedone year ahead of $edule the
acquisitions of six seniording comnunities,with a
resident cpacity of 1,064 and anvarage occupang

of 96 pecent.

o

Our gowth strategy is multifaceted and is based
on ourstrong and gpefrienced mangement teamour
estdlishednational plaform of opestions, our proven
track recod of profitable expansion,our financial
strength and thergwing maket demanddr senior lving
communitiesdriven by an ajing U.S. populdion. The

comerstones of this pwth strategy are:
s Development of n& comnunities;
s Expansion of risting comnunities;

s Intemal gowth geneating contirued pofitability and

positive rates of etum from our commanities; and

s Strategic acquisitions thiabring geographic or opeating

leverage to our potfolio.

Our opeating philosoply is based on delering a
continuum of cae to our esidentswhich allows them to
age in place Our comnuinities ofer differing levels of sevice

to fit this contiruum:

s Independent Wing sewices r senios not needing
assistance with mgractvities of dail living (“ADLS"),
such as eting, bathing, dressing and mediti@n
remindes or dispensingout who do want a esidential
community tha offers cae, meals,recreaional
activities, transpotation, wellness pograms,house-

keeping and other seices;

s Assisted Iving sewices tha provide pesonal cae,
suppot and supplemental sdces r residents Wwo
need help withADLs, but who do not equire the
more acute medical cartraditionally given in rursing

homes; and
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ontheleft JEFFREY L. BECK, Co-Chairman of the Board
ontherightt JAMES A. STROUD, Cco-Chairman of the Board

s Home cae thd expands theange of sevices ofered
to bridge the @p between ind@endent and assisted

living sewices.

Our residents benéffrom these leels of sevice
because thecan maintain as oth autonony and
independence as their mental andypital caabilities
pemit, and their €es ae based on theVel of sevice
they require. Importantly, as esidentsheeds bang
with age and healththey can eceve, at mary of the
Compaly’s comnunities,the sevices thg require

without harsing to move to a diferent facility.

This contimum of cae also benéfs us as a compgn
We ae ale to dtract residents tan ealier age and
provide them with gtended sesices Pr longer perods

of time than may other senior liing altenatives.The

average length of sta at our contilum of cae comnunities

is doube the aerage length of stp at a free standing

assisted lWiing comnunity.

With the populéion of pesons g@ed 75 and older
expected to mog than douke by the year 2030we
believe the demandofr our comnunities and car will
continue to incease Cgital’'s mangement gperience
financialstrength and soliddunddion position us to
translde thisdemand into qualityaffordable living for

our seniorresidents andalue br our shagholdes.

Thank you for your suppot,

%@g,sf‘iﬁué

JEFFREY L. BECK, co-Chairman of the Board

gmﬁ.m

JAMES A. STROUD, co-Chairman of the Board

March 29,1999
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C APITAL SENIOR- LIVING CORPORA TION
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Is a Ieadlng'natlonal developer and operator of senior living

communities in the U.S. In 1998, we operated in 17 states

from California to New York and Michigan to Florida, providing
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Our opeeating philosoply is to povide afordable,
guality living comnunities and setices to senior citiens
and delver a contimum of cae for our esidents as their
needs bang over time This contiruum of cae, which
integrates ind@endent Wing and assistedJing and
is bridged by home cag, sustains ouresidentsautonony
and indpendence based on theirysiical andmental
abilities. As our esidents ge, in mary of the Compaw's
comnunities,they are ale to obtain the aditional needed
sewices within the same commity, avoiding the disuptive

and often taumdic move to a diferent facility.

Independent Ning sewices accountedof about 81
percent of our opations in 1998. Indpendent Ning
communities ae moe socialy oriented than other
healthintensive ervironmentssud as mrsing homes,
andare ideal br individuals who need or want to
make alifestyle bangg, rather than one dven by health
requirrmentsThis level of sevice indudes daiy meals,
transpotation, social and ecreaional actvities, laundiy,
houseleeping, secuity and healthca monitoing.
Additionally, we offer our esidents health seenings,
dietaly and similar pograms,exercise and ithess tasses,
chronic disease magament (sul as didetes) anather
special serices.The monthy fees br indgpendent King
range from $1,250 to $2,400 per montihepending on the
community, the siz of the unit and the secesand

amenities used

Assisted Iving sewices,which provide cae and

sewices 24 hows per dg, accounteddr about 13 pecent
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of our opeations in 1998. Residents needing assisted
living sewices,rather than indpendent Wing sewices,
require help with one or merADLs but do not need
skilled or acute arsing cae. Cettain of our assisted
living facilities also povide residents with setces for
Alzheimer's disease and othesrs of dementiaAssisted
living sewrices povide a cost-dective altendive to rursing
homes 6r these indiiduals. Monthy fees br our assisted
living residentsrange from $1,750 to $2,40per month,
depending on the s&of the unit and the amount of assistance

and sevices equired by the esident.

Skilled rursing cae sevices compise the highest
level of cae in our contimum and epresented lout
six pecent of our opeations in 1998 This is taditional,
long-tem cawe provided ky highly skilled rursing
professionalsThrough these seices,we also ofer a
compehensie rang of restogtive rursing and ehailitation
sewices,including ptysical, occupdional and spedt

therapy. Residents pabetween $3,000 and $3,500 per

month,depending on the seices thg need
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comnunities were 96 pecent and occupancies all
comnunities (induding those in lease-upyaraged

95 pecent in 1998We provide sewices sub as home
care and estllish professional elationships thalead
to referrals. Our highlevel of resident sasfaction also
leads to aditional referrals. These &ctors ae comple-

mentay to and aided Y our actve maketing pograms.

s We caefully monitor etums from our popeties and stve
to increase werall opesting magins, which averaged 43

percent br 1998.As an eample of the success of these

efforts, our same-comomity reverue inceased § 6.8 per
cent aver the pior year and net opaiing income inceased
from 1997 to 1998ta rate of 15.5 pearent.

Our contimum of cae gproad creaes the dunddion s \We poomote emplgee taining and pofessional deelopment.
for our opeating philosoply. Only by focusing on the quality of our liiig, screening
« First, we provide a boad ang of high-quality ca tha training and supeision of our 1,800 empieees can &
is pesonalizd and tailoed to meet edtindividual provide high quality standds of cae for our esidents.
residents needsWe maintain a comghensie quality Several factors have made Cpital Senior Lving
assuance pogram thd includes anoal suweys of Corporation a success in the seniovilig industy:

resident stisfaction.This is not ony beneicial for our . . .
i s We have huilt a senior mangement team thais one

identsjt hel intain our occu evels . . . .
resiaentsjt helps us main pan of the most gperienced in the indusyr Our eight

and dtract nev residents to our comuamities. In 1998, . . .
executive officers have an aerage of 20 yass of industy

we receved a 95 parent esident stisfaction rting. ) . . -
P g expelienceand our 14 eecutive regional and distict

s We maket to midile- and uppeincome esidents and officers have an aerage of 15 years experience At the
utilize on-site maeeting directors. When &aluding community level, our executive directorls havze an
expansion or deelopment planswe assess ether the average of 13 years of industy experience Our senior
demaraphics of the a¥a suppdrour plans in our tageted mangement team has deloped @er $400 million
age and income pup. Rartly because of this siegy, in senior lving commnunities.

93 pecent of our esident everues vere pivate-pay in 1998. s We hae a lage naional base and ouraal is to duster

s We endewor to maintain and impwve our occupanc new developments aaing a stong geographic presence
levels. Our continum of cae results in a laver tumover in a paticular maket. This will provide opeegting
rate of residents and a loeg residence stathan taditional efficiencies,economies of scale and egional suppot
altemetive facilities. Average occupang rates a stebilized infrastucture.

=



s We hare a stong financial bundaion. With the contusion
of 1998,we reported our seenth consecuie pofitable
year Our cash balance of néai$36 million and a
$20 million cedit line (with a commitment to inease
the cedit line to $34 million) povide the esouces to
implement our sttegic growth stiategy. Additionally,
there is $176 million of dfbalance-sheetifiancing
available for the deelopment and long-ter financing

of our nav Waterford communities.

s We hare implemented seral monitoing and mangement
comprehensie and poprietaty information systems to
help mange financial and opeting dda. These systems
enale us to identify tends,monitor and contsl costs
and deelop picing stategies.We ae well positioned to
take adrantaye of the gowing demand dr senior lving
communities.An aging U.S. populdion will require
affordable living and cae facilities. According to the
U.S. Census Buwrau,the populéion of Americans ged
75 years and up will incease nedy one and dalf
times from the 1990 feel of 13 million to 32 million
in 2030.This gowing industy provides the bakdrop
against which we have developed a sting gowth plan,

based ondur key elements.

The frst of these is to delop nev comnunities.As
of eaty 1999,we had announced thewiddopment of 34
new commnunities with a cpacity of gproximately 5,000
residentsTwenty-seen of these ne facilities will be
Waterford comnunities,which will be focused tward
middle-income esidentsThe Waterford commnunities
incorporate mary amenities nanally found in moe
expensve popeties and a& based on déxible model,
enaling them to be congured to a paicular geographic

market, neighborhood or site
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Our second pwth stiategy is to futher expand our
existing facilities. We hase completed onexpansion in
1998 and hee 10 commnities curently under &pansion.
When ealuaing expansion of oursting propeties,
we caefully consider gpanding not onl the umber of
units tut also the scope of séces povided. Ead level
of sewice, independent Ning and assistedJing, requires
different facilities.We ae endeworing to ensue thd we
have the corect mix of fcilities in oder to povide a

continuum of cae for our esidents.

The thid pat of our gowth plan is based on inteal
growth, with the objectve of pioviding an dtractive rate
of retum from our popeties. Poviding adlitional levels
of care and maintaining high occupagnrates ae basic
to this successs is maintaining sitt cost contols. Our
expansion plans will also coritute to opesting eficiencies.
As we expand corporate overhead can be spad wer a
larger number of units and w ae ale to utilize geder

efficiencies of scale

The last ley element of our gpwth strategy is

acquisitions.Our histoy provides a poven tradk recod of
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successful consolidian and intgration. Our industy is
highly fragmented providing oppotunities to acque other
comrunities. Duimg 1998,0ne year ahead of $edule
we acquied six senior liing comnunities with a esident

cgpacity of 1,064 and arvarage occupang of 96 percent.

Since 1996 Capital has manged 13 popeties
for ILM Senior Lving and ILM Il Senior Lving (the
“ILMs”). We recenty announced the signing of dfive
merger agreements with the ILMsyhich upon completion,
will increase the mmber of evned comnunities ty
68 pecent flom 19 to 32. Cpital and the ILMshave a
histoly of working together We hare a poven tiack recod
with the ILMs, having increasedopelating income and
occupanciestahe ILM comnunities since w began to
manage them in 1996These esults eflect the shaed

opemting strategy of Capital and the ILMs of poviding

| [ |
ST "

-!,

residents thelality to age in place b integrating independent
living with assisted Viing and pesonal cae. The ILM
communities also miror the type of comumities curently
owned ly Capital, which contain aproximately 82 pecent
independentiving and gproximately 18 pecent assisted

living residences.

We ak in the senior Viing business ér mary reasons,
but the main one is thave cae. It is extremely rewarding
to provide a sevice thd makes sub a diference in the
caliber of life for so mag people We cae thd our residents
receve the qualityaffordable sewices the require. We
care tha our emplyees ae well-trained and motviated.
We cake tha our compaw’s financial healthstability and
growth are well-manayed. And we cae tha our shae-
holders beneit from the gowth of our compay We look

forward with anticipaion to our futue.



SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selected financial data of the Company. The selected financial data for the years endedDecember
1998, 1997, 1996, 1995 and 1994 are derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company.

Year ended December 31,
(in thousands, except per share data) 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994

STATEMENTS OF INCOME DATA:

Revenues:

Resident and healthcare revenue $ 24,790 $ 21,207 $13,692 $13,238 $12,761

Rental and lease income 4,282 4,276 1,101 1,231 1,235

Unaffiliated management services revenue 2,465 1,920 801 — —

Affiliated management services revenue 1,327 1,378 2,708 2,778 3,113

Unaffiliated development fees 1,234 804 673 — —

Affiliated development fees 7,473 173 — — —

Other 1,197 952 924 871 800

Total revenues 42,768 30,710 19,899 18,118 17,909

Expenses:

Operating expenses 17,067 16,701 10,656 10,287 10,142

General and administrative experi8es 6,594 7,085 5,635 4,364 4,595

Depreciation and amortization 2,734 2,118 1,481 1,776 1,707

Total expenses 26,395 25,904 17,772 16,427 16,444

Income from operations 16,373 4,806 2,127 1,691 1,465
Other income (expense):

Interest income 4,939 3,186 432 368 122

Interest expense (1,922) (2,022) (221) (278) (261)

Gain on sale of properties 422 — 438 — —

Equity in earnings on investments — — 459 — —

Other — 440 42 — (16)
Income before income taxes and minority

interest in consolidated partnerships 19,812 6,410 3,277 1,781 1,310
(Provision) benefit for income taxé@s (7,476) (793) — (18) (130)
Income before minority interest

in consolidated partnerships 12,336 5,617 3,277 1,763 1,180
Minority interest in consolidated partnerships (379) (1,936) (1,224) (760) (634)
Net income $ 11,957 $ 3,681 $ 2,053 $ 1,003 $ 546
Net income per share:

Basic and Diluted $ 0.61 $ 0.33

Weighted average shares outstanding 19,717 11,150
Pro forma net income data (unauditéd)

Net income $ 3,681 $ 2,053

Pro forma income taxes (965) (811)

Pro forma net income $ 2,716 $ 1,242

BALANCE SHEET DATA:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 35,827 $ 48,125 $10,819 $10,017 $ 8,799
Working capital (8,680y" 44,690 9,567 6,784 5,938
Total assets 205,267 117,371 33,203 29,747 29,913
Long-term debt, excluding current portion 32,671 7,575 201 337 177

Equity 104,516 92,560 17,201 14,447 12,495

(1) General and administrative expenses include officers’ salaries of $670,000, $3,342,000, $3,372,000, $2,976,000 and $3,443,000 for the years ended December 31, 1998,
1997, 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively. Prior to November 1997, these amounts were primarily composed of salaries and bonuses paid to the founders and were based
in part on federal income tax regulations regarding distributions of closely held corporations and S corporations. Effective with the Offering, these federal income tax
regulations no longer applied to the Company. Compensation of the founders since October 1, 1997 has been based on the founders’ employment agreements.

(2) A provision for income taxes was recorded by the Company from inception through February 1, 1995. No provision for income taxes has been recorded from February 1,
1995 through completion of the Formation Transactions as the operating companies included in the historical financial statements, prior to the Offering, were S corpora-
tions or partnerships and accordingly were not subject to income taxes during the period.

(3) Pro forma income taxes have been calculated based on the assumption that the S corporations and partnerships were subject to income taxes. Pro forma income tax
expense has been calculated using statutory federal and state tax rates, estimated at 39.5%.

(4) The Company expects to complete a refinancing of its $47,700,000 mortgage loan due October 1999 with long term fixed rate mortgage loans during the second
quarter of 1999.

CAPITAL SENIOR LIVING CORPORATION




MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

The following discussion and anaiis adiresses the Compgis results of opeations on a histacal consolidéed basisdr the
yeas ended December 31998,1997 and 1996The fllowing should beead in conjunction with the Compgas histoical
consolidaed inancial sttements and the selectédancial déa contained elsehere in this eport.

On September 151997,the Compan increased its authmed common shas flom 40,000,000 to 65,000,000 sésiand
authoized 15,000,000 shes of pefered sto&. On November 51997,the Compan issued 18,037,347 ddional shaes of
common stok (including 1,350,000 shas issued uporxercise of an option gnted underviters to puchase aditional common
shaes in conjunction with the @dring) bringing its total issued and outstanding &saof common stdcto 19,717,347 shes.
Of the 18,037,347 shes issued7,687,347 shass vere issued to Messr Bed, Stroud and Cohen in theoEnaion Transactions
descibed heein and 10,350,000 shearvere registered with the Secities and Exbang Commissiondr trading in pubic markets.

On November 51997,the Compan also entexd into Formation Transactions (hein so called) with Messr Be& and
Stroud wherrby they contiibuted all of their wned caital stok of Capital Senior Lving, Inc., Capital Senior Mangement 1,
Inc., Capital SeniorManagement 2)nc., Cgpital Senior Deelopment/nc., and with Mr Cohenpof Quality Home Cag; Inc. (the
“Contributed Entities"}to the Compayin exchange for the issuance of 7,687,347 sspf common stécof the Compay and
the issuance of parate notes in the ggregate amount of $18,076,380 to MessBek, Stroud and Cohenwhich were subsequertl
repaid by the Compayfrom the net prceeds eceved from the sale of the Compgds common stdcin the Ofering.

As pat of the Formaion Transactionsthe Compan simultaneous} purchased substantigllall of the opeating assets of
Cagpital Senior Lving Comnunities,L.P. (“*CSLC") [including CSLCS investment in HealthCarPopeties,L.P. (‘HCP”) and
NHP Retiement Housing &tners | Limited Rartnership (“NHP”) and &cluding CSLCS cashlU.S. Treasuy secuities puchased
under the_ehman Bothess Holdings,Inc. loan @reement (“LBHI Loan”) and wrking capital items] br an agregate puchase
price of gproximately $76.6 million,compised ofthe assumptionypthe Compay of CSLC’ outstanding LBHI Loan of
approximately $70.8 million and pament of cash oépproximately $5.8 million to CSLC. On Neember 7,1997,the Compan
repaid the LBHI Loan fom the poceedseceved fom the Ofering.

In October 1997the combined Companies d&ed and paid didends of $457,647 to MessBed, Stroud and Cohen in
preparation for the Formation Transactions thatransbrmed the combined companiesrin dosely held coporations and
S corporations to non-tosely held C coporations for federl income tax pyroses.

Due to all of the entities wolved in the Brmation Transactions being under the common ocondf Messes. Bek and
Stroud, the Compayp’'s consolidéed financial stéements eflect the assets and lidities & their historcal values and the
accompaning consolidéed stéements of incomeequity, and cashléws reflect the combinedesults br the peiods indicaed
through the dee of the Ofering even though thg have histoically opeeted as sgarte entitiesThe Formation Transactions he
been accountefibr & histoiical cost in a manner similar to a pooling of iet&s to thexdent of the perentaye ovnership by
Messs. Bek andStroud of the CompanAcquired assets and bdities of CSLC hae beene@coded & fair value to the eent
of minoiity interest. CSLC's assets idade irvestments in HCP and NHP

On Setember 301998,the Compay enteed into a mdgage loan greement with Lehman Bthes Holdings|nc. (“Lehman
Loan”), under vhich the Compay borowed $47,700,000The pupose of the Lehman Loanaw to povide financing br the
acquisition of dur NHP senior liing comnunities,as well as br theTesson Heights Enterises (“Tesson”) senior Viing
comrrunity, all of which hare been pleded as collteral. Intelest costs & based on 30-gaLIBOR and vere gproximately
6.95% & December 311998.The loan greement miures October 11999,and the Companexpects to complete &financing
of this motgage loan with long ten fixed ate motgage loans dung the second quiar of 1999.

On Setember 30,1998,the Companp acquied four senior Wing comnunities fom NHP br cash considetion of
$40,650,000The funds 6r the tansaction were piovided from working capital of the Compayand fom the poceeds of the
Lehman Loan.

The senior lring comnunities acquied ky the Compay from NHP ae TheAtrium of Camichael in Camichael,California;
Crossvoods Oaks in Citrs HeightsCalifornia; The He#herwood in Southgld, Michigan; andTheVeranda Club in Boca Ren,
Florida. The Compan had opegted these comuomities under a long-ter mangement contict since 1992The puchase pice
for the popeties was detemined ly independent ppraisal. Rrsonnel vorking & the popety sites and ceéain home diice
personnel viho perbrmed sevices br NHP hae been emplgees of the CompgnNHP (pror to the acquisitions)eimbursed
the Compan for the salaes, relaed benets, and oerhead eimhursements of sucpesonnel. Cpital Realty Goup Biokerage,
Inc., a compay wholly owned ty Messs. Bek and Stoud, receized a bokerage fee of $1,219,500etaed to this tansaction,
which was paid g NHP.
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MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The acquisitions are accounteddr as a pwhase hsiness combinin and the Compars opestions hae induded the
opeitions of NHP since $#ember 301998.

On October 281998,the Compan acquied two senior ing comnunities fom Gamecy Hill Entemprises,a Texas limited
patnership (“Gramery”), andTessonfor aggregate considegtion of gpproximately $34,000,000The funds ér theTesson
transaction wre piovided fom working caital of the Compaynand fom $15,400,000 of pceeds fom the Lehman LoarThe
funds br the Gamecy transaction wre piovided from working capital of the Compay) the assumption of the $6,334,660
Washington Motgage Fnancial Goup, Ltd. (“WMFG”) promissoy note (assigned toafnie Mae) and &m the poceeds
of the $1,980,000VMF Washington Maigage Cop. (“WMFC") loan desdbed belav.

On October 281998,the Compan enteed into a $6,334,66A@ssumption and Releaggreement with Bnnie Maeand a
$1,980,000 raltifamily note in fwvor of WMFC. The pupose of the loans as to povide financing br theGramery
acquisition.The senior ling comnunity acquied from Gramecy has been pledgl as collgeral under these loankterest
costs ae 7.69% and 7.08%espectiely. TheAssumption and Releaggreement andVMFC note méure in &ruary 2008and
Jarualy 2010,respectiely.

The senior fring comnunities acquied by the Compay from Glamercy andTesson a& Gramecy Hill in Lincoln, Nebraska
andTesson Heightdn St. Louis,Missouii. The acquisitions wre accounteddr as puchase hisiness combirteons, and the
Compary’s opestions hae induded the opeations of Tesson Heights and @mnecy Hill since October 281998.

From 1990 though December 31,998,the Compan acquied inteests in 19 comomities and ented into an opeting
lease with espect to one comumity, which was teminated efective Jruary 31,1998. Since 1996he Compan expanded its
senior lving mangement serices ly enteing into the mangement serice contacts on 15 comuonities or four indgpendent
third-paty owners and commenced @riding development and constction mangement serices br nev residence mpeties
in addlition to adling a home carsevice agengy.

The Compan genegtes everue fom a \ariety of souces. or the year ended December 311998,the Compay's reverue
was deived as dllows: 58.0% fiom the opaation of 11 avned commnities thawere opeated ky the Compay;, 10.0% fom lease
rentals fom tiple net leases of tee skilled mrsing facilities and éur plysical ehailitation centes; 8.9% fom mangement
fees asing from mangement serices povided for four afiliate ovned senior liing comnunities flom Jruary 1, 1998 though
September 301998 and one &fiate ovned senior liing comrnunity from Jruary 1, 1998 though December 31,998 and 15
third-paty owned senior lling communities; and 20.4% &ém dezelopment ées eared br manaing the deelopment and
constuction of nev senior lving comnunities Dr third paties.

The Company believes thathe factors afecting the ihancial perbrmance of commmnities manged under conécts with thid
patties do not ary substantialf from the &ctois afecting the pedrmance of wned and leased conumities,although thez ae
different husinessisks associ&d with these aatities.

The Compay's thid-paty mana@gement €es ag pimarly based on a peentae of goss everues.As a lesult,the cash
flow and pofitability of such contacts to the Compgrare moe dgpendent on theeverues @nested by sud comnunities and
less deendent on net castof than br ovned commnities. Futher, the Compan is not esponsike for cgital investments in
managed comnanities.While the mangement conticts ae geneally terminable only for causein cettain cases the comirts can
be teminaed upon the sale of a comnity, subject to the Compgts lights to ofer to puchase sut comnunity.

The Compay's tiiple net leasesxéend though the gar 2000 dr three of its evned commnities and though the gar 2001
for four of its avned commnities. The paments under these leases xed and a& not subject tolmng based upon the
opeiting perbrmance of these commities. Fllowing temination of the leasegieementsthe Compayn may either comert and
opeste the comranities as assistediing andAlzheimers cae facilities, sell the &cilities or @aluae other altaratives.

The Compan's curent mangement conticts &pire on \arious daes betveen December 1999 andsember 2009 and
provide for mangement €es basedanerlly upon etes tha vary by contiact fom 4% of neteverues to 7% of neteverues.
In addition, certain of the contacts povide for supplemental inceni fees thavary by contact based upon thenfincial
performance of the magad comnunity. The Compay's development ées ag geneally based upon a pegntaye of constuction
cost and & eaned wer the peiod commencing with the initial delopment actiities and ending with the opening of the
comrmunity. As of December 311998,development ées hae been eared Dr sewices perbrmed br 39 comnunities under
development or gpansions dr third paties.
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During 1998,1997,1996 and 1995he Compay made arious puchases of limited pameiship inteests in HCPHCP avns
and opegtes a skilled arsing facility and evns and leases to thipaty opegtors (under tiple net leases) tee skilled mrsing
facilities and éur ptysical ehailitation centes. Duing 1998,1997,1996 and 199%he Compan paid gproximately $101,000,
$5,605,000$3,201,000 and $309,00fspectiely, for patnership inteests in HCPThe Compan changd its method of
accounting or its investment in HCP &m the cost method in 1995 to the equity method in 1886 esult of aditional
purchasesthe Compay's avnership inteest in HCP rceeded 50% orude 26,1997.Accordingly, this patial acquisition has
been accounteaf by the puchase method of accountirend the assetBabilities, minority interest,and the esults of opetions
of HCP hae been consolided in the Compans financial stéeements sincealualy 1, 1997.

The Compay acquied on November 1,1997,the Rension Notes of NHP (“NHP Notes™"ywoed ty CSLC in the Brmation
Transactionsdr $18,664,128The NHP Notes bear simple inést @ 13% per anam and meure on December 32001.
Interest is curently paid quaterly a a rate of 7%,with the emaining 6% intezst deémred Beginning November 1,1997
through Setember 301998,the Compan has beeneacoding inteestincome & 10.5% of the puhase pice paid which
was detemined based on the discounted amount @igipal and inteestpayments to be mad®llowing the méurity date
(December 312001) of the NHP Notes (using a six-montp ketween méurity and full epayment),due to unceainties
regarding the ultim#e realizdion of the acared inteest. On Sptember 301998,the Compan purchased éur piopeties from
NHP. NHP is in tun redeeming $7,500,000 of the Companirvestment in the NHP Notes and is dmiting gpproximately
$5,300,000 of defired inteest not peviously paid on suk notes. Fom October 11998 though December 31,998, the
Compary reevaluged its irvestment in the NHP Noteand is ecoding adlitional income after gving consideation to curent
payment of inteest,pattial redemption of the NHP Notes with aged inteest and the estirtedresidual alue in NHPAIso,
during 1998 and 1996@he Compan paid $344 and $1,3641 4% and 3%respectiely, ownership of limitedpaitnership
interests in NHPThe Compap accountsdr its investment in NHP on the cost method wigéispect to the NHP limited
patnership inteests and as held-to-mogity secuities and eported @ amotized cost with espect to the NHP Notes.

The Compay will continue to deelop and acquér senior King comnunities. The deelopment of seniorling comnunities
typically involves a substantial commitment ofpiial over a 12- to 14-month consttion peiod duiing which time no
revernues ae geneated, followed by a 12-month lease-up ped. The Compan anticipdes tha nevly opened orxpanded
communitieswill operate & a loss dung a substantial ption of the lease-up ped. The Compay's gowth strategy may
also indude theacquisition of seniorVing comnunities,home cag aencies,and other prpeties or lusinesses thare
complementar to the Compayis opestions and gowth stiategy.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Pllowing tebles set brth, for the peiods indicded, selected histacal consolidéed stéements of income da in thousands
of dollars and gpressed as a pentaye of total everues.

Year Ended December 31

1998 1997 1996
% $ % $ %

Reverues:

Resident and health@reverue $24,791 58.0% $21,207 69.1% $13,692 68.8%

Rental and lease income 4,281 10.0 4,276 13.9 1,101 55

Unafiiliated mangement serices everue 2,465 5.8 1,920 6.2 801 4.0

Affiliated mangement serices everue 1,327 3.1 1,378 45 2,708 13.6

Unafiiliated deelopment ées 1,234 2.9 804 2.6 673 3.4

Affiliated derelopment ées 7,473 17.5 173 0.6 — 0.0

Other 1,197 2.7 952 3.1 924 4.7

Total reverues 42,768 100.0 30,710 100.0 19,899 100.0

Expenses:

Opeiting expenses 17,067 39.9 16,701 54.4 10,656 53.6

Geneal and administtive expenses 6,594 15.4 7,085 23.1 5,635 28.3

Deprecidion and amdization 2,734 6.4 2,118 6.9 1,481 7.4

Total xpenses 26,395 61.7 25,904 84.4 17,772 89.3

Income fom opeetions 16,373 38.3 4,806 15.6 2,127 10.7
Other income (egpense):

Interest income 4,939 115 3,186 10.4 432 2.2

Interest xpense (1,922) (4.5) (2,022) (6.5) (221) (1.1)

Gain on sale of mpeties 422 1.0 — — 438 2.2

Equity in eanings on inestments — — — — 459 2.3

Other — — 440 1.4 42 0.2
Income bebre income tags and minadty

interest in consolidied pamerships 19,812 46.3 6,410 20.9 3,277 16.5
Provision for income tags (7,476) (17.5) (793) (2.6) — —
Income befre minoity interest in

consolidéed patnerships 12,336 28.8 5,617 18.3 3,277 16.5
Minority interest in consolid&d pamerships (379) (0.8) (1,936) (6.3) (1,224) (6.2
Net income $11,957 28.0% $ 3,681 12.0% $ 2,053 10.3%

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998 COMPARED TO THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 1997

Revenues:

Total reverues vere $42,768,000 in 1998 comearto $30,710,000 in 199&presenting an inerase of $12,058,000r 39.3%.
Resident and health @reverue inceased $3,584,000f which $4,015,000 is aesult of puchasing thedur NHP popeties,
Gramecy Hill and Tesson Heightsalong with a de@ase of $237,00@Ilting to the HCP mpeties. Unafiliated mangement
sevices everue inceased $545,000 due to a sigraiit impovement in the peofmance athe popety level resulting in incentie
payments and one ddional third-paty man@ement contict adled in the ifst quater of 1998. Undfliated deelopment ées
increased $430,000f which $894,000 is aesult of two adlitional thid-paty development conticts and the contirgtion of four
projects thaeaned £es br sezen months in 1998 as compdrto twp months ér 1997 and a deease of $464,00@sulting fom
one deelopment poject completed on December 3B97 and thee deelopment pojects teminated by a thid paty. Affiliated
development ées inceased $7,300,00€esulting fom fees eared on 29 mjects in 1998 comped to one in 1997.
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Expenses:

Total expenses wre $26,395,000 in 1998 compearto $25,904,000 in 199presenting an inease of $491,00@r 1.9%.
Opemting expenses in@ased $366,000 due to an iease of $1,954,000 as esult of acquing six piopeties in the éurth
quater of 1998 along with a de@ase of $1,361,00@leted to the teninaion of Maryland Gadens lease andfskt by an
overall decease in opeting expenses. Genarand administtive expenses deeased $491,000 due to a d=se in dicers’
salares of $2,670,000 get by a $325,000 in@ase due to the acquisition of siopeties in the durth quater of 1998,.a
$185,000 incease in deslopment penses due to the irease in deslopment pojects,a $200,000 in@ase in pofessional
fees tharelate to lagal fees,a $100,000 in@ase in license aneéd &pensea $320,000 in@ase in HCP gneal and
administetive expensesalong with an gerall increase in gneal and administtive expensesDeprecidion and amdization
increased $616,000 due to an ease of $424,000 asesult of the acquisition of the sixgpetiesin the urth quater of 1998,
an $80,000 in@ase dr the epansion of Cottonaod and an inease of $37,000 in the artimation of goodwill f or twelve
months in 1998 as opposed taotmonths in 1997.

Other income and expenses:

Interest and other income ireased $1,835,000rimaiily as a esult of a $1,365,000 irease in income assotgd with irvestment
of cash eseves,a $1,600,000 inease in NHP Notes intest due to a paal redemption of the notes andypaent of acaned
interest,a $308,000 in@ase in intest eaned flom theTriad, Triad Il andTriad IV (as heginafter dehed) unsecwed cedit
facilities,which is ofsetby a $1,400,000 deease in intagst due to the destment of an Westment fom line 1997 thwugh
October 1997 y CSLC.Interest expense de@ased $100,000 due to a dm=ase of $1,267,000 of inest elated to the
Lehman dét incured in the Brmation Transactions and a dease of $44,000 in HCP inest expense due toefinancing
These de@ases a offset by anincrease of $1,201,000 in int=t expense due to the acquisition of the sigpsties.A gain
of $422,000 was ecoded on thesale of tvo propeties in the éburth quater of 1998. In connection with the sale of its
investment in HCP to the Compaimmediaely following completion of the é€ring, CSLC incured shor swing profits, as
defined ty the Seciuties and Exbang Commissionand was,accodingly, required to emit su@ profits to HCRwhich
recoded the emittance of $440,000 as other income in 1997.

Minority interest:
Minority interest in limited paneiships de@ased $1,557,000rimaiily due to the CSLC minity interest being inluided in 1997
through October and not ihmed in 1998.

Provision for income taxes:

Provision for income tags was gproximately $7,476,000 in 1998 compt to $793,000 in 199As a esult of the Brmation
Transactionsthe Compay and its consolidad subsidides were cowerted flom S coporations tha are taved d the shagholder
level to C coporations tha are subject to c@orate income tags.Accordingly, a piovision for fedeal and stte taves was povided
on the earings br 12 months in 1998 compat to tw months in 1997.

Net Income:
As a esult of the dregoing factoss, net income in@ased $8,276,000 to $11,957,0001998 fom $3,681,000dr 1997.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 COMPARED TO THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 1996

Revenues:

Total reverues vere $30,710,000 in 1997 comparto $19,899,000 in 1996presenting an inease of $10,811,000r 54.3%.
The indusion of HCP everues in 1997 fsm Jruary 1, 1997 contibuted $8,978,000 of the ireaiseas HCP vas not consolided
in 1996. Resident and healtheaevenue inceased $7,515,000f which $4,702,000 is aesult of the HCP consolitian,
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$1,157,000 ws impovement in CSLG reverues due toealizaion of adlitional reimbursements mviously limited under the
Medicae piogram for 1994 and 1992 combined with inoped CSLC ental etes and occupancies and $1,543,G81&ed to the
Maryland Gadens &cility leased onuhe 1,1997. Rental and lease income gased $3,175,000f which $4,276,000 was due
to the HCP consolid®n, offset ky $1,101,000 due to the sale of CS&@uilti-family propeties on Neember 1,1996. Undfiliated
manaement serices everue inceased $1,119,000 due to 15 dapaty mangement conticts aded in the thid and burth
quater of 1996 and one diional third-paty man@gement contict adled in the second quar of 1997 Affiliated mangement
sewices everue deceased ¥ $1,330,0000f which $1,177,000 was due to the HCP consoltidm. Development ées inceased
$304,000 and &s due to ne development conict mangement everue for manging the deelopment and constction of nev
third-paty owned senior liing comnunities.

Expenses:

Total expenses wre $25,904,000 in 1997 compdrto $17,772,000 in 1996presenting an inerase of $8,132,000r 45.8%.
The indusion of HCP gpenses fsm Jruary 1,1997 contibuted $6,538,000 of the iresise Opeeting expenses in&@ased
$6,045,0000f which $4,251,000 w&s a esult of the HCP consolitlan and $1,561,000 due to Mdand Gadens opeating
expenses. Genal and administtive expenses in@ased $1,450,00@;hich was due to the HCP consoltaan of $1,078,000
offset ky an overall decease in gneal and administtive expenses. Dareciaion and amdization increased $637,000f
which $1,209,000 ws elaed to the HCP consolitlan, offset ky a $572,000 deease in CSLG derecigion which was
primarily due to the sale of CSLEhulti-family rental popeties in November 1996.

Other income and expenses:

Interest income in@ased $2,754,000rimarily as a esult of CSLCS increase in intexst income of $1,116,754 assaewith
its investment in US. Treasuy Bills, $1,230,000 as asult of the Compaps inciease in interst income assodid with its
increased imestment in NHP Notes combined with the commencement dfiagca potion of the deéred income on these
notes bginning inApril 1997, as a esult of NHPS impioved fnancial position and pesfmance and ineased aludion of the
undetying propeties, $288,361 assodied with income fom tempoary investment of net pceeds fom the Ofering for
November and December 19%hd the consolideon of HCP of $359,000. Intest expense ineased $1,801,000 asesult of
higher dét balances idoding the LBHI Loan baowings on dily 1,1997 and $679,000 as esult of the HCP consolitan.
Income fom equity in earings on irestments deeased $459,000 as esult of the HCP consolitdan on &ruary 1,1997. In
connection with the sale of itsviestment in HCP to the Compaimmedidely following completion of the @éring, CSLC
incurred shot swing profits, as deihed ty the Sectuties and Exbang Commissionand was,accodingly, required to emit
such profits to HCP vhich recoded the emittance as other incom& gain of $438,000 &s ecoded on Nwember 1,1996,as
a result of the sale of aiti-family propeties with no caresponding gin being ealized in 1997.

Minority interest:
Minority interest in limited panerships inceased $712,000 iprarily as a esult of the HCP consolitdan.

Provision for income taxes:

Provision for income tags was gproximately $793,000 in 1997 comped to no povision in 1996 As a esult of the Brmation
Transactionsthe Compaw and its consolidad subsidides were corverted from S coporations tha are taved d the
shaeholder lgel to C coporations tha are subject to cqorate income tags.Accordingly, a provision for federl and stee
income taes is povided on eatings after the érmation Transactions.

Net income:
As a esult of the dregoing factoss, net income in@ased $1,628,000 to $3,681,000 1997 fom $2,053,000dr 1996.
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QUARTERLY RESULTS

The fllowing teble presents céain quatery financial inbrmation for the bur quaters ended December 31998 and 1997.
This information has been ppared on the same basis as the audited Consatidnancial Steements of the Compgrappeaing
elsavhere in this eport and indude, in the opinion of margement,all adjustments (consisting of moal recuring adjustments)
necessarto present &irly the quatery results vihen ead in conjunction with the audited Consala@thRnancial Stéeements of
the Compan and the elated notes theto.

1998 Calendar Quarters

First Second Third Fourth
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Total reverues $8,354 $9,234 $10,556 $14,624
Income fom opeations 2,330 3,397 4,906 5,740
Net income 1,926 2,511 3,506 4,014
Net income per shar $ 0.10 $ 0.13 $ 0.18 $ 0.20
Weighted &erage shaes outstanding 19,717 19,717 19,717 19,717

1997 Calendar Quarters
First Second Third Fourth
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Total reverues $7,091 $7,977 $ 7,652 $ 7,990
Income fom opeations 1,124 980 959 1,743
Net income 583 630 797 1,671
Net income per shar $ 0.06 $ 0.07 $ 0.09 $ 0.10
Weighted &erage shaes outstanding 9,367 9,367 9,367 16,440

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As descibed in the notes to the accompiny Consolidéed Fnancial Steementsthe Compay repaid all of its notes peble
to afiliates and the megage loan pgable to Lehman Bothes Holdings,Inc. with proceeds fom the Ofering in November
1997,leaving only the motgage piopety loans of HCP outstanding tleafter The Compap also secwed a thee-year evolving
line of credit of $20 million vhich mg be useddr acquisition of aditional inteests in HCP and NHEBxpansion of wned
communities,acquisition of aditional popeties and gneal working caital puposes.

In addition to gproximately $36 million of cash balances on hand as of Decembe&t98B,the Compay's piincipal souces
of liquidity are expected to be caslofvs from opeations and amountsvailable for borowing under its $20 millionavolving
line of credit. Subsequent to December 3398,the Compan receved a commitment to inease its line of edit to $34 million.
There can be no assamce however, tha the Compay will continue to gneete cashlbws & or ébove curent levels or thathe
Compary will be able to meet its anticigad needdr working caital.

The Compan deiives the bené@bs and beas the rsks dtendant to the comumities it avns. The cashlbws and pofitability
of owned commnities dpends on the opaing results of sue comnunities and & subject to céain tisks of avnership,including
the needdr capital expenditues,financing and otheligks sub as thosealding to ewironmental maers.

The cashlbws and pofitability of the Compay’s ovned commnities tha are leased to thit paties deend on the lality
of the lessee to makiimely lease pgments At December 311998,HCP was opegting one of its popeties and had leased
seven of its avned popeties under iple net leases to thdrpaties until year 2000 or 2001.dur of these mpeties ae leased
until year 2001 to HealthSouth Rddilitation Comp. (“HealthSouth”) which provides acute spinal injyrintermediae cae &
these popeties. HealthSouthlased one of thesadilities in 1994 andlosed anotheraiility in Februaty of 1997 due to by
occupang. HealthSouth has contied to mak lease paments on a timglbasis or all four piopeties. Should the opators of
the leased mpeties de&ult on pgment of their lease digations pior to temination of the leasegieementssix of the seen
lease conficts contain a contirng guaantee of pgment and pedrmance l the paent compan of the opeators, which the
Compary intends to pwsue in the eent of defult. Following teminaion of these leasethe Compan will either cowvert and
opekte the &cilities as assisted/ing andAlzheimers cae facilities, sell the &cilities or @aluae other altaraives. HCPs facility
lessees a&rall curent in their lease digations to HCPThe lesseedr one popety contirues to fund a difit between the
requiredlease pgment and opetors’ cash fow.
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The cashlbws and pofitability of the Compaw’s third-paty management ées ae dgpendent upon theeverues and
profitability of the comnunities manged While the mangement conticts ae geneally teminable only for causgin cettain cases
the contacts can be tetinaed upon the sale of a coramity, subject to the Compgis lights to ofer to puchase sut comnunity.

The Companp plans to contine to deelop and acqué senior Wing comnunities.The deelopment of senior Ving
communities typicaly involves a substantial commitment ofpdal over a 12-month conatction perod duing which time no
reverues ae genested followed ty a 12- to 14-month lease-up joet.

Effective April 1, 1998, Tri Point Comnunities,L.P. (“Tri Point”), a limited pameiship avned ty the Compay's foundes
(Messs. Bek and Stoud) and their diliates,was eoiganized and the intests of Mess. Bek and Stoud were sold atheir
cost toTriad Senior Lving, Inc. and its diliates,which ale unelaed thid paties. Tri Point was enamedrriad Senior Lving |,
L.P. (“Triad I"). The nev geneal patner ofTriad I, owning 1%.,is Triad Senior Lving, Inc. The limited patners ae Blake N.
Fail (principal ovner of Triad Senior Lving, Inc.), owning 80%,and the Companowning 19%.The deelopment greements
betweenTriad | and the Comparprovide for a deelopment ée of 4% to the Compgras well as eimbursement of gpenses and
overheachot to exceed 4%1Triad | has also ented into mangement greements with the Compgmproviding for mangement
fees in an amount equal to theger of 5% of goss everues or $5,000 per month per coomity, plus oerhead eimbursement
not to exceed 1% of goss everues.The Compan has an option to panase the pamership inteests ofTriad Senior Lving,
Inc. andBlake N. Fail for an amount equal to the amounttspaty paid Pr its inteest,plus noncompounded int&st of 12% per
anrum. The mangement greements also pvide the Companwith an option to puhase the commities deeloped ly Triad
| upontheir completion dr an amount equal to thaif maket value (based on a thipaty appraisal lut not less than hdrand
soft costsand lease-up costsjhe Compay has made no detaination as to vinether it will exercise its puchase optionsThe
Compaly will evaluae the possile exercise of eab purchase option based upon thesimess andriancial Bictoss tha may
exist & thetime those options nyebe ercised

Triad | has entexd into constiction loan &cilities aygregating goproximately $50,000,000 to fund its delopment
actiities and a tag-out facility aggregating gpproximately $50,000,000.

During 1998,the Compay agreed to loarTriad | up to $10,000,000he pincipal is due Math 12,2003.The frst diaw
underthis loan &cility was made on Mah 12,1998. Inteest is due quéily a 8% per anam. This loan mg be pepaid without
penalty At December 311998, approximately $9,636,000 has beenwahced tdTriad | under this loanakility.

Effective September 241998,the Compawn andTriad Senior Lving I, L.P. (“Triad 1I"), a limited pamership,enteed
into a Derelopment and'urnkey SewvicesAgreement in connection with thewddopment and magament of the Compgfs
planned ne Waterford comnunitieswhere Triad 1l would ovn and fnance the conaiction of the n& comnunities.Triad 11
was oganized on Sptember 231998.The genearl patner of Triad I, owning 1%,is Triad Rartness Il, Inc. The limited patners
are Triad Rartness II, Inc., owning 80%,and the Companowning 19%.

The Compay has an option to pdnase the pameiship inteests ofTriad Fartners Il, Inc. in Triad 1l for an amount equal to
the amount sutpaty paid Pr its inteests,plus noncompounded ingst of 12% per anim. The mangement greements with
Triad Il also povide the Companwith an option to puhase the comuonities deeloped ly Triad Il upon their completiorof an
amount equal to thaifr maket value (based on a tdipaty gppraisal lut not less than hdrand soft costs and lease-up coJtsg
Compary has made no detemaion as to wether it will xercise its puchase optionsThe Compan will evaluae the possile
exercise of eals puichase based upon thediness andrfancial fictos which may exist & the time those options m&e eercised

Triad 1l has entexd into constiction and mini-pan loan &cilities agregating gpproximately $26,000,000 to fund its
development actiities.

During the thid quater, the Compay agreed to loarTriad Il up to $7,000,000. Oradualty 15,1999,the loan amount as
amended to up to $10,000,0ate pincipal is due Sgtember 252003.The frst drew under this loandcility was made on
September 251998. Inteest is due quéay a 10.5% per arum. This loan my be pepaid without penaltyAt December 311998,
approximately $932,000 has beenahced tdlriad Il under this loanaility.

On Setember 301998,the Compay acquied four senior king comnunities fom NHP br $40,683,281 yenteing into
the $32,300,000 Lehman Loangcash pament of $8,246,007 and assumption of net assets dildiéia of $137,274The Compan
has motgaged the dur senior Ning comnunities as collgeral. The acquisition \&s accountedf as a puwhase

On October 281998,the Compan acquied a seniorViing comnunity from Tesson ér $23,051,786The Compay borowed
$15,400,000 pwuant to thedsting motgage loan greement with Lehman and ntgaged the senior Ving comnunity as
collateral. The Compap also acquied a senior \iing comnunity from Gramecy for $11,036,655The Compan assumed a
$6,334,660 note ém Fannie Magand borowed an aditional $1,980,000 &m WMFC on a second lien basis and tgeged
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MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

the senior ling comnunity as colléeral for both loansThe Compay paid the emaining puchase pices with a cash ganent
of $7,376,632 and $2,425,79@spectiely, and assumption of Imlities of $275,154 and $296,19%&spectiely.

Effective November 101998,the Compay andTriad Senior Lving IIl, L.P. (“Triad IlI"), a limited patnership,enteed
into a Development and'urmkey SewvicesAgreement in connection with thev@opment and magament of the Compgis
planned ner Waterford comnunities where Triad Il would avn and fnance the conasiction of the n& comnunities.Triad 111
was oganizzd on Neember 101998.The genenl patner ofTriad lll, owning 1%,is Triad Rartness llI, Inc. The limited patners
are Triad Rartness ll1, Inc., owning 80%,and the Compaf owning 19%.

The Compan has an option to pdnase the pamership inteests ofTriad Rartners Ill, Inc. in Triad Il for an amount equal
to the amount stcpaty paid or its inteests,plus noncompounded intst of 12% per anm. The mangement greements
with Triad Ill also povide the Companwith an option to puhase the comanities deeloped ly Triad 11l upon their completion
for an amount equal to thaif maket value (based on a thiipaty appraisal lut not less than hdrand soft costs and lease-up
costs).The Compay has made no detaination as to vether it will ercise its puchase optionsThe Compan will evaluge
the possile exercise of eab puichase based upon thadiness andriancial fictoss which may exist & the time those options
may be eercised

Triad 11l has entexd into constiction and mini-pen loan fcilities aygregating goproximately $51,000,000 to fund its
development actiities.

During the burth quater, the Compan agreed to loarTriad Il up to $10,000,000rhe pincipal is due Ebruary 8,2004.
Interest is due quéerly a 10.5% per arum. This loan m& be pepaid without penaltyAt December 311998,no monies hee
been adanced tdlriad 11l under this loandcility.

Effectve December 3@,998,the Compan andTriad Senior Lving IV, L.P. (“Triad 1V"), a limited pamership,enteed
into a Development andumkey ServicesAgreement in connection with thevdgopment and magament of the Compgis
planned ne Waterford comnunities where Triad 1V would ovn and fnance the consiction of the n& comrrunities. Triad IV
was oganizd on December 22998.The geneal patner of Triad IV, owning 1%,is Triad Rartners 1V, Inc. The limited patners
are Triad Rartness IV, Inc., owning 80%,and the Companowning 19%.

The Compan has an option to pdnase the pamership inteests ofTriad Rartners 1V, Inc. in Triad 1V for an amount equal
to the amount sicpaty paid or its inteests,plus noncompounded intst of 12% per amm. The mangement greements
with Triad 1V also povide the Companwith an option to pwhase the comunities deeloped ly Triad IV upontheir
completion br an amount equal to theif maket value (based on a thipaty appraisal lut not less than hdrand soft costand
lease-up costshe Compay has made no deteindion as to vhether it will ercise its puchase optionsThe Compan will
evaluae the possile exercise of ealh purchase based upon thadiness andrancial fictois which may exist a the timethose
options ma be «ercised

Triad IV is ngotiating commitmentsdr loan fcilities agregating up to $50,000,000 to fund itsv@dopment actiities.

During the burth quater, the Compay agreed to loarfriad 1V up to $10,000,000Che pincipal is due December 3R003.
The frst diew under this loandcility was made on December 3®98. Inteest is due quéery a 10.5% per arum. This loan mgt
be pepaid without penaltyAt December 311998,approximately $1,160,000 has beenvathced taTriad 1V under this loanafility.

Net cash mvided ty opegting actiities, of $6,689,000dr the year ended December 31998,deceased $2,994,000r 31%,
over thd of the compaable year ended December 31997,which was composed of ineased casHdw creaed by improved
eanings of $7,215,000 (after noncash adjustments) combined with $10,209,000 of oaeth fien working capital.

Net cash used investing actiities of $25,094,0000k the year ended December 31998 deceased $56,408,000er tha
of the compaable year ended December 31997.This decease \as composed of ineased gaital expenditues of $3,586,000
primarily related to the Cottonaod epansionthe ladk of compaable proceeds fom sale of popeties in 1997 compad to
1998's proceeds of $676,00@, decease in imestments in 1998 in limited paerships (CSLCHCP and NHP Notes) of
$13,915,000the $64,203,000 wrestment k the Compan in resticted cash secities from the poceeds obtaineddm the LBHI
Loan and the diérence in 1997dr cash paiddr the Sptember 1998 pohase of assets acqeil from NHR and the October 1998
purchase of assets acqeil fom Tesson and Gmecy, offset by the Navember 1997 pehase of assetsdim CSLC and d$et by
HCP’s bainning cash balance of $8,995,000 asslt of the consolidean of HCP & Jaruary 1,1997 in the amount of $9,805,000.

Net cash povided by financing actiities, of $6,106,000dr the year ended December 31998,deceased $103,019,000
over tha of the compaable year ended December 31997.This decease was due to $110,331,000 of nebpeeds eceved by
the Compan in November 1997 fsm the Ofering.
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MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

YEAR 2000 ISSUE

TheYear 2000 Issue is thesult of computer pgrams being witten using tvo digts rather than dur to deine the aplicable
year Any of the Compayi's computer mgrams or hadware thd have dde-sensitie software or embeded dips mag recanize
the year 2000 as a tlother than thegar 2000This could esult in a systemaflure or miscalculdons causing disiptions of
opegtions,including, among other things tempoary inability to process @nsactionssend ivoices,or engge in similar nomal
business actities.

Based on onging assessmentdie Compan has deeloped a psgram to modify or eplace signifcant potions of its
software and cerin hadware, which ae geneally PC-based systemsp tha those systems will ppety recaynize and utiliz
daes bgond December 31,999.The Compan has substantiglicompleted softare reprogramming and softare and hadware
replacement as of December 3B98,with 100% completion taeted br Setember 301999.The Compan presenty believes
that these moditations and eplacements ofxasting software and cerin hadware will mitigate theYear 2000 IssueHowever,
if such modifications and eplacements arnot completed timgltheYear 2000 Issue could Vea méerial impact on the opetions
of the Compay The costs o¥ear 2000 emedidion ae not epected to be ntarial based on the Compgs opeations.

The Compan has assessed itsppsue to opeating equipmentand sub exposue is not signitant due to the nare of the
Compary’s husiness.

The Compan is not avare of ary extemal ayent with ayear 2000 Issue thavould mderially impact the Compans results
of opegtions, liquidity, or caital resouces. Havever, the Compay has no means of deteining whether or ensirg tha extemal
agents will beYear 2000-ead. The indility of extemal ayents to complete thelfear 2000 esolution pocess in a timglfashion
could maerially impact the Compan

Management of the Comparbelieves it has an &ctive piogram in place toasohe theYear 2000 Issue in a tinyeinanner
As noted hove, the Compay has completed mostibnot all necessgphases of it¥ear 2000 pgram. In the eent tha the
Compaiy does not complete the cent pogram or ag adlitional phaseshe Compan could incur disuptions to its opetions.
In addition, disruptions in the econoyngeneally resulting fomYear 2000 Issues could alsoterlly adversely affect the
Compary. The Compay could be subject to litagion for computer systemsifure. The amount of potential ldlity and lost
reverue cannot beeiasonhbly estimaed d this time

The Compan currently has no contingng/ plans in place in thesent it does not complete all phases o¥éar 2000 pgram.
The Compan plans to galude the staus of completion in mid-1999 and detene whether suls a plan is necessar

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Compay's pimary maket fisk exposue is inteest ete lisk. At December 311998,the Compay had $66,674,186 million
of variable rate debdt tied to LIBOR,consisting of one $18,974,186v0lving credit facility tha maures on December 12000
(the“Bank One Rcility”) and one $47,700,000exlit facility tha maures on October 1,999 (the‘Lehman Facility”). The
Compary expects to complete &financing of the Lehmandgility with long tem fixed rate motgage loans duing the second
quater of 1999. Intezston the Bank Onedility is based on LIBOR plus 1.7%. Inést on the Lehmanagility is based on
LIBOR plus 1.875%At December 31,1998he LIBOR mte was 5.08%An increase in integst ates will increase the
amount of inteest expense incued by the Compan Other notes peable of $14,415,847 consists akéd ate motgage
loans. Noteseacevable of $11,728,162 a&r also ixed rte financial instuments.

The Compan is also &posed to maet risks from fluctudions in inteest etes and the &cts of thoseldictuaions on the
maiket values of its cash equilent shar-term investmentsThe cash equalent shar-term investments consist jpnarily of
ovemight investments thaare not signiicantly exposed to integst ete risk, except to the &tent tha changes in inteest etes
will ultimately affect the amount of intest income eaed on these Vrestments.

IMPACT OF INFLATION

To dde, inflation has not had a sigi@ant impact on the Compurinflation could however, affect the Compayis futue reverues
and esults of opations because pamong other thingghe Compay's dependence on senioesidentsmary of whom ely
primaiily on fixed incomes to pafor the Compayis sevices.As a lesult,during inflationary peiods,the Compan may not be
able to incease esident sefice fees to account fyllfor increased opeting expenses. In dfictuiing its feesthe Company attempts
to anticipae inflation levels, but thee can be no assance thathe Compay will be ale to anticip&e fully or otherwise @spond
to ary future inflationary pressues.
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MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Cettain information contained in thiseport constitutesForward-Looking Stéements'within the meaning of Section 27A of the
SecuitiesAct of 1933,as amendednd Section 21E of the Settigs Exdang Act of 1934,as amendedvhich can be identiéd
by the use ofdrward-looking teminology sud as“may,” “will,” “expect; “anticipae,” “estimae” or “continue” or the neative
thereof or other ariations theeon or compable teminology. The Compan cautions eades tha forward-looking stéements,
including, without limitation, those elaing to the Compayis futue husiness myspectsreverues,working capital, liquidity, capital
needsjnterest costsand incomeare subject to céain risks and uncéainties thacould cause actuatsults to difer maerally
from those indidad in the érward-looking stéementsdue to seeral impotant factos heein identifed, among othes, and other
risks and &ctoss identifed from time to time in the Compwis reports filed with the Secuties and Exbange Commission.

MARKET FOR CAPIT AL SENIOR LIVING CORPORA TION’'S STOCK

During the peiod of Jruary 1,1998 though December 31,998,the high and v sales pces vere 1512 and 5/s respectiely.

At December 311998,there were gproximately 3,900 shagholdes of recod of the Compayis common stdc

It is the poliy of the Compayis Boad of Directos to etain all futue eanings to inance the opetion and &pansion of the
Compan'’s kusinessAccordingly, the Compay has not and does not antidipaletaring or pging cash diidends on the common
sto in the breseeble future. The pgment of cash didends in the fut will be d the sole dis@tion of the Compans Boad
of Directos and will dpend onamong other thingshe Compay's eanings,opegtions, cgpital requirementsfinancial condition,
restictions in then ®isting financing greementsand otherdictos deemedalevant by the Boad of Directos.

The Compay's shaes of common stdcare listed br trading on the N York Stodk Exchange (“NYSE”) under the
symbol“CSU".
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

THE SHAREHOLDERS
CAPITAL SENIOR LIVING CORPORATION

We hare audited the accompgng consolidéed balance sheets of @&l Senior Lving Comporation as of December 31998
and 1997and the elaed consolideed stéements of incomeshaeholdes’ equity, and cashléws for eat of the thee years in
the peiod ended December 31998.These inancial stteements & the esponsibility of the Compais mangement. Our
responsibility is to xpress an opinion on thesdncial stteements based on our audige did not audit the consolitkd
financial steements of HealthCarPopeties, L.P. and subsidiaes,a 57% avned subsidiar, which staements eflect total
assets of $32,758,958 and $32,801,853 as of Decemb&®33 and 1997espectiely, and total everues of $8,787,575 and
$8,977,628 dr the years ended December 31998 and 1997 espectiely. Those steements were audited b other auditos
whose eport has been furished to usand our opinioninsofar as it elaes to déa induded br HealthCae Popeties,L.P, is
based solgl on the eport of the other auditas:

We conducted our audits in acdance with gneally acceted auditing standds. Those standals requite tha we plan
and perdrm the audits to obtaireasonble assusince dout whether theihancial sttements a free of méerial misstaement.
An audit indudes &amining on a test basigvidence suppding the amounts and digsures in the ihancial stéeements.
An audit also inludes assessing the accountin@iples used and sigmfint estimées made Y mana@gement,as well as
evaluaing the averall financial sttement pesentéion. We believe tha our audits and thesport of other auditos provide a
reasonble basis or our opinion.

In our opinionbased on our audits and ttepart of other auditas, the inancial sttements efered to &ove present &irly,
in all maerial respectsthe consolideed inancial position of Qaital Senior Lving Colporation as of December 31998 and 1997,
and the consolidad lesults of their opetions and their cashadiws for eat of the thee yeass in the papd ended December 31,
1998,in conformity with geneally acceted accounting prciples.

émt ¥ MLLP
Dallas, Texas

February 5, 1999,
except for Notes 20 and 12, as to which the dates are
February 7, 1999 and February 12, 1999, respectively
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CONSOLIDATED

BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

1998

1997

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash egalents $ 35,827,270  $ 48,125,225
Accounts ecevable, net 2,955,507 1,966,357
Accounts ecevable from afiliates 7,217,127 26,696
Interest ecevable 535,857 229,749
Deferred taves 287,040 8,280
Prepaid expenses and other 448,790 251,400
Total curent assets 47,271,591 50,607,707
Propety and equipmentet 118,943,953 41,120,448
Deferred taxes 10,108,715 10,090,997
Deferred inteest 853,075 173,456
Notes ecevable from afiliates 11,728,162 —
Investments in limited parerships 13,337,522 13,741,940
Management congict tights, net 195,631 243,559
Goodwill, net 1,213,876 1,257,595
Deferred inancing ©iamges,net 530,531 108,435
Other assets 1,083,679 26,773

Total assets

$205,266,735

$117,370,910

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current lidbilities:

Accounts pgable $ 2,780,513 $ 2,566,392
Accrued epenses 2,231,895 1,259,410
Current potion of notes pgable 48,419,050 932,664
Customer dposits 851,375 277,413
Fedenl and st income tags pgable 1,668,602 831,682
Due to dfiliates — 50,064
Total curent ligbilities 55,951,435 5,917,625
Deferred income fom afiliates 792,240 —
Deferred income 115,062 231,256
Notes pgable, net of curent potion 13,696,797 5,744,767
Line of credit 18,974,186 1,830,130
Minority interest in consolidied paterships 11,220,836 11,087,512
Commitments and contiegcies
Shaeholdes’ equity:
Prefered stok, $.01 par alue:
Authotized shaes — 15,000,000; no slesrissued or outstanding — —
Common stok, $.01 par alue:
Authoiized shaes — 65,000,000
Issued and outstanding skar- 19,717,347 in 1998 and 1997 197,173 197,173
Additional paid-in caital 91,740,251 91,740,251
Retained eanings 12,578,755 622,196
Total shaeholdes’ equity 104,516,179 92,559,620

Total liabilities and shaholdes’ equity $205,266,735  $117,370,910

See accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31,

1998 1997 1996

Reverues:

Resident and healtheareverue $24,790,516 $21,206,865 $13,691,984

Rental and lease income 4,281,603 4,275,611 1,101,317

Unafiliated mangement serices everue 2,464,677 1,919,618 800,961

Affiliated mangement serices everue 1,327,019 1,378,444 2,708,077

Unafiiliated deelopment ées 1,234,050 803,767 673,587

Affiliated deelopment ées 7,472,501 172,927 —

Other 1,197,260 952,650 923,700

Total reverues 42,767,626 30,709,882 19,899,626

Expenses:

Opemting expenses 17,067,451 16,701,127 10,656,431

Geneal and administtive expenses 6,593,810 7,084,986 5,634,873

Deprecigion and amdization 2,733,658 2,117,288 1,481,056

Total expenses 26,394,919 25,903,401 17,772,360

Income fom opestions 16,372,707 4,806,481 2,127,266
Other income (epense):

Interest income 4,938,989 3,185,815 432,342

Interest &pense (1,921,897) (2,022,494) (221,521)

Gain on sale of ppeties 421,718 — 437,819

Equity in eanings on irestments — — 458,992

Other — 440,007 42,042
Income bebre income tags and minaty interest in

consolidaed pamerships 19,811,517 6,409,809 3,276,940
Provision for income tags (7,475,771) (792,524) —
Income bedre minoity interest in consolid@d pamerships 12,335,746 5,617,285 3,276,940
Minority interest in consolid&d pameiships (379,187) (1,936,122) (1,223,997)
Net income $11,956,559 $ 3,681,163 $ 2,052,943
Net income per shar

Basic and diluted $ 0.61 $ 0.33

Weighted serage shaes outstanding 19,717,347 11,150,087
Pro forma net income (unaudited):

Net income $ 3,681,163 $ 2,052,943

Pro forma income tags (964,776) (810,912)
Pro forma net income $ 2,716,387 $ 1,242,031

See accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS'™ EQUITY

Additional Retained
Common Stock Paid-In Earnings
Partners’ Capital Shares Amount Capital (Deficit) Total
Balance aJarualy 1, 1996 $ 14,655,669 1,680,000 $ 16,800 $ (13,242) $ (211,849) $ 14,447,378
Issuance of common stoc — — — 16,800 — 16,800
Capital contibutions — — — 23,000 — 23,000
Purchase of Benéfial Unit
Cettificates of CSLC 660,403 — — — — 660,403
Net income 1,941,706 — — — 111,237 2,052,943
Balance aDecember 311996 17,257,778 1,680,000 16,800 26,558 (100,612) 17,200,524
Purchase of Bendfial Unit
Cettificates of CSLC 374,867 — — — — 374,867
Distributions pror to Offering — — — (457,647) (457,647)
Issuance of stdcresulting
from the Brmation — 7,687,347 76,873 (76,873) — —
Issuance of stécin Offering, net — 10,350,000 103,500 110,227,415 — 110,330,915
Equity not etained
in Asset Puchase (20,133,353) — —  (18,436,849) — (38,570,202)
Net income 2,500,708 — — — 1,180,455 3,681,163
Balance aDecember 311997 — 19,717,347 197,173 91,740,251 622,196 92,559,620
Net income — — — — 11,956,559 11,956,559
Balance aDecember 311998 $ — 19,717,347 $197,173 $91,740,251 $12,578,755 $104,516,179

See accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,
1998 1997 1996

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 11,956,559 $ 3,681,163 $ 2,052,943
Adjustments toeconcile net income to net

cash povided by opegting actvities:

Deprecidion 2,639,883 1,894,665 1,397,258
Amortization 93,775 222,623 83,798
Amortization of deered inancing ©iages 163,708 — —
Minority interest in consolidieed patmeirships 379,187 1,936,122 1,223,997
Defered inteest (679,619) (173,456) —
Deferred income fom afiliates 792,240 — —
Defemred income (116,194) 231,256 —
Deferred income tags (296,478) (39,158) —
Equity in eanings on irestments — — (458,992)
Gain on sale of land (421,718) — (437,819)
Provision for bad déts 500,000 43,254 22,312
Changs in opegting assets and kalities, net of acquisitions:
Cash resticted — 186,416 (2,588)
Accounts ecevable (1,481,883) (1,556,965) (219,854)
Accounts ecevable from afiliates (7,190,431) 90,955 58,811
Interest ecevable (306,108) — —
Prepaid expenses and other 4,110 (373,006) 23,359
Other assets (1,059,034) (11,454) (14,940)
Accounts pgable 361,798 2,698,550 85,328
Accrued &penses 525,944 23,529 (5,402)
Federl and stte income tags pgable 836,920 831,682 —
Customer dgosits 36,812 28,955 32,295
Due to afiliates (50,064) (31,392) 61,310
Net cash pvided ty opegting actvities 6,689,407 9,683,739 3,901,816

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditues (6,027,361) (2,441,106) (851,732)
Cash paiddr acquisition of NHPdcilities (40,546,007) — —
Cash paiddr acquisition of Gamecy facility (4,405,798) — —
Cash paiddr acquisition offesson &cility (22,776,633) — —
Proceeds fom sale of land 676,036 — 2,549,352
Advances to diliates (11,728,162) — —
Cash acqued upon acquisition of HCP — 8,995,455 —
Investment in esticted cash equalents — (64,202,763) —
Cash paiddr Asset Puchase and cash nattained — (8,244,077) —
Investments in limited parerships (1,693,934) (15,609,034) (3,401,207)
Net cash used inwvesting actiities (86,501,859) (81,501,525) (1,703,587)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

1998 1997 1996

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds fom notes pgeble and line of cedit 67,039,026 78,663,883 —
Repayments of notes gable and line of cedit (791,214) (77,363,736) (145,319)
Repayments of notes pable to afiliates — (1,166,481) (455,592)
Proceeds fom notes pygable to afiliates — 500,000 470,000
Distributions to minoity partners — (224,795) —
Distributions pior to Offering — (457,647) —
Issuance of common stomet — 110,330,915 16,800
Capital contibution — — 23,000
Cash eceved for redemption of NHP limited pareiship inteest 1,997,280 — —
Repurchase of HCP limited parership inteests ly HCP (144,791) — —
Repurchase of Bendfial Unit Cetificates of CSLC — (960,752) (1,262,355)
Deferred loan bages paid (585,804) (196,888) (42,953)
Net cash pvided by (used in) ihancing actiities 67,514,497 109,124,499 (1,396,419)
(Decrase) in@ase in cash and cash eqlents (12,297,955) 37,306,713 801,810
Cash and cash egaients &begginning of year 48,125,225 10,818,512 10,016,702
Cash and cash egaients &end of yar $ 35,827,270  $ 48,125,225 $10,818,512
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES
Cash paid duing the ear br:

Interest $ 1,956,812 $ 2,041,366 $ 188,510

Income tars $ 6,935330 $ — $ —

See accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N OTE 1. ORGANIZATION, FORMATION AND INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

Capital Senior Lving Colporation, a Delavare coporation, was incoporated on October 23,996.The accompaying financial
stéements inlude the consolidad inancial steements of Cgital Senior Lving Coiporation (“Corporation”); Capital Senior
Living Propetties, Inc. induding HealthCae Popeties,L.P. (“HCP”) (as of &nualy 1,1997); Caital Senior Lving, Inc.
(“Living”); Quality Home Cag, Inc. (“Quality”); Capital Senior Dgelopment,Inc. (“Development”); Caital Senior
Management 1Inc. (“Management 1”); Caital Senior Mangement 2)nc. (“Management 2”); Caital Senior Lving Propeties
2, Inc. (“Propeties 2"),which indudes Caital Senior Lving Propeties 2-Gamecy, Inc. (“Gramecy”) and Caital Senior
Living Piopeties 2-NHPCTInc. (“NHPCT") (collectively refered to with Caital Senior Lving Comporation as theé'Compary”).
The accompaying financial stteements a presented on a combined basi®pto November 51997,and indude Caital Senior
Living Communities,L.P. (“CSLC”) through tha dae. CSLC induded the accounts of CSLC and HBF material intecompary
balances anddnsactionsiave beereliminaed in consolidéon.

The Companp is a povider of senior Ning serices.The Compan owns, opetes,develops and mamgges senior liing
comnunities thoughout the United Sties.

The Compan completed theegistration of its common stdcin an initial pultic offering (“Offering”) on November 51997.
Simultaneous} with the dosing of the Offering, Corporation acquied Living, Quality, DevelopmentManagement 1,and
Management 2 (“lrmation”) in exchange for 7,687,347 shas of common stécand a note peable for $18,076,380 (“Brmation
Note”) to Effrey L. Bedk and AmesA. Stroud or a elaed tust (collectvely, the “Stockholdes”) and LavrenceA. Cohen all
officers of the Compayn Additionally, Comoration purchased substantigliall of the asset@ther than wrking capital items,of
CSLC (the “Asset Puchase”) br the assumption of a $70,833,752 notggbke and a cash panent of $5,782,927The
Stokholders owned 46% of the common stoof the Compay after the Offering.

Due to all of these entities being under the common obofrthe Sto&holdess for all pefods pesented por to the
Offering, these consolidad inancial stteements eflect the assets and hidities & their histoical values and the accompang
consoliddéed stéements of incomeequity, and cashléws reflect the consolidad results br the peiods indicaed e/en though
they have histoically opested as sgarate entities pior to the Brmation. The Formation was accountedf & histoiical cost in
a manner similar to a pooling of ingsts to thexdent of the pezentaye ovnership by the Sto&holdess. TheAsset Puchase vas
recoded 4 fair value to the tent of the mindty interest.A step-up in basis of $9,282,202as ecoded br propety and
equipment and $2,692,666rfthe irvestment in NHP Notegdditionally, a detred tax asset of $10,060,119 armbdwill of
$1,264,881 ws ecoded Assets thawere not acquied fom CSLC in théAsset Puchase thwere combined in theirfancial
staements until sut dae were chaiged to paid-in cpital. CSLCS assets ifaded irvestments in HCP and NHP Retinent
Housing Rutners |, L.P. (“NHP”) which were acquied in theAsset Puchase NHP avned a pafolio of five indgpendent senior
living comnunities. On Sptember 301998,the Compan purchased éur of the fve indgpendent seniording comnunities flom
NHP (See Note 4).

In the accompaying consolidéed fnancial stteementsHCP is consolidad as though the Compahad acquid a contlling
financial inteest in HCP gJaruary 1,1997.At December 311998,1997 and 1996he Compan owned gproximately 57%,
56% and 31% of HCR'limited pamer unitsrespectiely. Preacquisition eanings br 1997 aplicable to HCP age induded in
minority interest.

HCP is a Delware limited patership esthlished br the pupose of acquing, leasing and opefing existing or nevly
constucted long-tem healthcag piopeties. One mpety is opeated by HCP and seen popeties ae leased to quaiéfd opeators
who povide specializd healthcar sevices. Caital Realty Goup Senior Housingnc. (“Housing”), an entity conwlled by the
Stodholdes until line 10,1998,is the gnernl patner On dline 10,1998,Housings paent coporation, Capital Realty Goup
Comoration, sold 100% of its stdcin Housing to an umdated thid paty. The Compan contirues to consolide HCP a
December 311998, since it still maintains a comting financial inteest.

HCP and NHP & subject to theeporting oHigations of the Secities and Exbhange Commission.
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N OTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash and cash equivalents:

Investments with aginal maurities of thee months or lesseconsidezd to be cash equlents.The Compawy has deosits in
banks thaexceed ledenl Deposit Insuance Coporation insuance limits. Mangement beliees tha credit risk related to these
deposits is minimal.

Long-lived assets:

Propety and equipment arstdaed a cost and dgreciaed on a saight-line basis er the estim@d useful lives of the assets.
The estimged useful Nes ae 30 to 40 gass for kuildings, 20 years for land impovements and 5 to 1CGewis for fumiture,
equipment and automobiles.

Management contact ights ae stded d cost and amaized on a stight-line basis wer their espectie contact lives.
Accunulated amotization for mang@ement coniact lights @ December 311998 and 1997Avas $320,532 and $272,604,
respectiely. Gooaill is the excess puthase pice over the &ir value of the assets acqgir in theAsset Puchase to thexdent
of the minoity interest and is amdized over 30 years on a stight-line basisAccumulated amotization for goodwill at
December 311998 and 1997Avas $51,005 and $7,28@&spectiely.

At eath balance sheet tathe Compay reviews the carying value of its mangement contict ights,goodwill, and popety
and equipment to detaine if facts and coumstances sggst tha they may be impaied or thathe amatization or derecigion
petiod may need to beftanged The Compan consides extemal factos relding to eab assetincluding contact canges,local
market developmentsand other pulicly available information. If these rtemal factoss indicde the intaniple assets or ppety
and equipment will not beecoverable, the carying value of the intanigle assets or ppety and equipment will be angled and
adjusted accalingly. During 1996,manaement contct iights of $44,755 wre wiitten of due to the tenination of a cetain
contract tha has beeneflected as aditional amotization expense The Compan does not beliee thee ae ary indicaors tha
would require an adjustment to the eging value of the margement contct lights, goodwill or propety and equipment or their
remaining useful lies as of December 31998.

Income taxes:

The Compan accountsdr income tags under the liaility method Defered income tags eflect the net taxeffects of
temporary differences beteen the caying amounts of assets andhlities for financial eporting puposes and the amounts
used br income tax pyoses.

CSLC and HCP ar patnerships angdconsequenyl are not subject to income tes. Taxable income or loss is déctly
allocaed to the indiidual patners.

Prior to the Brmation, Living, Quality, DevelopmentManagement 1 and Magement 2 vere S coporations and consequemnt!
were not subject to income tex Thus,taxable income or loss is dictly allocaed to the indiidual sto&holdess. Upon Brmation,
these caporations cowerted from S coporations to C coporations.A deferred tax beneéf of $41,085 vas ecoded in the
consolidéed stéements of income upon ogersion.

Revenue recognition:
Resident and healtheareverue is ecanized d estimaed net ealizable amounts due ém residents in the pexd to which the
rental and other seices ae piovided

Reverues fom the Medicae and Medicaid mgrams accountedf 16% and 22% in 1998 and 199&spectiely, and less
than 10% in 1996 of the Compas net everues. One comunity is a povider of sevices under the Indiana Medicaicbgram.
Accordingly, the comnuinity is entitled to eimtursement under thefegoing program d estdlished etes tha are lover than
private pa rates. Rtient sevice revenue for Medicaid p#ents is ecoded d the eimbursement ates as theates ae set
prospectiely by the stée upon theifing of an anmwal cost eport. Two comnunities ae pioviders of sevices under the Medicar
program and ag entitled to eimbursement under theffegoing programs in amounts detained based on thdifig of an anmial
cost eport prepared in accadance with édeal regulaions, which reports ae subject to audit an@troactve adjustments in
future perods. Reerue fom the Medicag piogram is ecoded 4 estdlished etes and adjusteaf differences betaen sub
rates and estimad amountsaimhursable from the pogram.Any differences beteen estimiged and actualkimbursements ar
included in opegations in the yar of settlementyhich have not been mairial. Under &deal regulaions, Medicae reimhursements
to these dcilities ae limited to putine cost limits detemined on a gagraphical iegion. The Compan has fled exception reports
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to request eimbursement in xcess of itsoutine cost limitsdr the yeass 1992 though 1997as of December 31,998,and
recoded everue of gproximately $43,000 in 1998as a esult of being tanted &ception requestsdr 1997 and pproximately
$346,000 in 1997as a esult of being tanted &ception requestsdr 1992 and 1994There can be no asaance thaan eception
to a fcility’s routine cost limits will be ganted CSLC etained costaport exposue for cost yarss piior to the Ofering.

Laws and egulaions goveming the Medicax and Medicaid mgrams ae comple& and subject to intpretaion. The Compan
believes thait is in compliance with allgplicable lavs and egulaions and is notwaare of ary pending or thegened iwvestige
tions involving allegations of potential wengdoing While no sub regulaory inquiries hae been madeompliance with sut
laws and egulaions can be subject to fuigovemment eview and intepretaion as vell as signifcant regulaory action
including fines,penaltiesand &clusion from the Medicag and Medicaid mgrams.

Management serices everue, resident and healthaarevenue and deelopment ées ae recagnized when eaned
Management serices everue elaes to poviding cetain mangement and adminisiive suppor services under marmgement
contracts,which hare tems epiring through 2002. Mangement sericesreverue is shan net of eimbursed &pensesThe
reimbursed &penses fim afiliates were $11,031,136$3,892,526 and $6,477,198y the yeas ended December 31998,1997
and 1996respectiely. Reimhursed epenses fom unafiliated paties were $14,689,953$8,941,343 and $2,600,52@r
the yeais ended December 31998,1997 and 1996G.espectiely.

Credit risk:

The Compay's resident ecevables ae geneally due within 30 dgs and deelopment ée ecevables ae due a&completion of
constuction,which is generlly one year The Compay does notequire collderal. Credit losses hae been within margements
expectdions,and mangement beliges thathe allavance br doubtful accounts adededy provides br ary expected losses.

Advertising:
Advertising expenses @& expensed as incted Advertising expensesdr the yeais ended December 31998,1997 and 1996
were $243,720$336,738 and $210,028:spectiely.

Net income per share:
Basic net income per sleais calculted by dividing net income ¥ the weighted aerage rumber of common shes outstanding
during the peiod. Diluted net income per steconsides the dilutve efect of outstanding options calctéd using the &asuy
stodk method

Net income per sharfor peiods pior to 1997 ae not compaable to subsequent ped amounts due to the Compas
Formation and Ofering in October 1997 andonsequenyi are not induded

Stock-based compensation:

The Compan has elected tmflow the intinsic value method ilccounting Pinciples Boad Opinion No. 25;Accounting br
Stok Issued to Emplgees”(“APB 25") and elaed intepretaions in accountingdr its emplgee stok options. In accatance with
APB 25,since the xercise pice of the Comparis emplyee stok options equals the niaat pice of the undédying stok on the
dae of gant,no compendin expense iseécanized The Compap has adopted the dissure-only provisions br the &ir value
method of Steement of FhancialAccounting Standais No. 123;'Accounting br Stok-Based Compensian” (“FASB 123").

Segment information:
Effective Jruary 1,1998,the Compan adopted the iRancialAccounting Standals Boad’s Staement of fhancialAccounting
Standads No. 131/Disclosures dout Sgments of an Entprise and Reked Information” (“Statement 131”) Staement 131 super
seded RSB Staement No. 145Financial R@orting for S@gments of a Business Enpéase”. Staement 13Jlestdlishes standais
for the vay tha pulic business enterises gport information about opeating sggments in anmal financial steements andequires
tha those entaarises eport selected indrmation ebout opeating s@ments in inteam financial eports. Staement 131 also
estdlishes standals for related distosures d&out poducts and seices,geagraphic aeas and major custonsehe adoption of
Staement 131 did not &dct lesults of opettions or fnancial positionput did afect the dislosure of enteprise-wideinformation.

The Compan evaluaes the pedrmance and allotes esouces of its seniorVing facilities based on crent opeations and
market assessments on apety-by-propety basis.The Compan does not hee a concenétion of opegtions geagraphically
or by product or serice as its margement functions arintegrated d the popety level.

Affiliated derelopment €es in the accompyging stdements of incomespresents deelopment €es eared fom theTriad
paitnerships.
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Use of estimates:

The peparation of financial sttements in cordrmity with genearlly accgted accounting mciplesrequires mangement to
make estimées and assumptions thaffect the amountseported in the inancial sttements anédccompaning notesActual
results could dfer from those estinas.

Reclassifications:
Cettain piior year amounts lve beenedassifed to conbrm to 1998 pesentéion.

N OTE 3. TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATES

Effective April 1, 1998,the Compap obtained a 19% limited paership inteest inTriad SenioiLiving I, L.P. (“Triad 1”) for
$330,243 in cashiThe Compan is accountingdr this investment under the equity methodaaftounting based on the
provisions of theTriad | patnership @reementThe Compay is developing senior liing comnunitiesfor Triad I. Additionally,
the Compap loaned mongto Triad | pursuant to an unsecea loan &cility not to excceed $10,000,00@he pincipal is due
March 12,2003.The irst diaw under this loandcility was made on Mah 12,1998. Inteest is due quéty at 8% per anam.
This loan mg be pepaid without penaltyAt December 311998,$9,635,799 has beenahced tolriad | under this loan
facility. The Compay has deérred inteest income and aelopment ées fom Triad | of $67,253 and $222,556espectiely,
as of December 31,998.

Effective Setember 231998,the Compan obtained a 19% limited pawership inteest inTriad Senior Lving Il, L.P.
(“Triad I1") for $74,100 in cashthe Compap is accountingdr this irvestment under the equityethod of accounting based
on the povisions of theTriad Il patnership agreementThe Compan is developing senior liing comnunities or Triad II.
Additionally, the Compan loaned mong to Triad Il pursuant to an unseced loan &cility not toexceed $7,000,00Qyhich
was inceased to $10,000,000 ocandaly 15,1999.The pincipal is due Sgtember 252003.The frstdraw under this loan
facility was made on $¢ember 251998. Inteest is due quaery at 10.5% per arnmm. This loan m§ be prepaid without
penalty At December 311998,$932,201 has beenahced tolriad Il under this loandcility. The Compaw has deéred
interest income and delopment €es fom Triad Il of $3,149 and $94,918spectiely, as of December 31,998.

Effective November 101998,the Compay obtained a 19% limited pvership inteest inTriad Senior Lving Ill, L.P.
(“Triad 111") for $142,500 in casfithe Compay is accountingdr this irvestment under the equity method of accounting based
on the povisions of theTriad Il patneship ayreementThe Compan is developing senior liing commnunities or Triad 111
Additionally, the Compan loaned mong to Triad Il pursuant to an unseced loan &cility not toexceed $10,000,000@he
principal is due Ebruary 8, 2004.The frst diaw under this loandcility will be made subsequent tBecember 311998,0n
Februarty 8,1999. Inteest is due quéery a 10.5% per arum. This loan mg be pepaid without penaltyAt December 311998,
no monies hee been aganced talriad 11l under this loandcility. The Compaw has deéred deelopmentfees fom Triad 111 of
$162,532 as of December 31998.

Effectve December 221998,the Compan obtained a 19% limited paership inteest inTriad Senior Lving 1V, L.P.
(“Triad V") for $142,500 in casfihe Compan is accountingdr this investment under the equity method of accounting based
on the povisions of theTriad IV patnership ayreementThe Compay is developing senior liing comnunities br Triad 1V.
Additionally, the Compay loaned mongto Triad IV pursuant to an unseced loan &cility not to exceed $10,000,000 he
principal is due December 32003.The frst diaw under this loandcility was made on December 3®98. Inteest is due
quaterly & 10.5% per arum. This loan mg be pepaid without penaltyAt December 311998,$1,160,162has been adnced
to Triad IV under this loandcility. The Compan has deérred inteest income and delopment €es fom Triad 1V of $129
and $237,558espectiely as of December 31998.

The Compan has options to puhase popeties fom the &ove Triad patnerships & fair value The Compay also can
purchase the pamership inteests of the non-Compwrpatners for an amount equal to the amounttspaty paid for its
interest,plus noncompounded in&st of 12% per arum. The Compay provides a guantee of its subsidias’ completion of
constuctionguamntee and opating defcit agreementThe Compan has no commitments or lidpations to acquie ary
propeties oradditional patnership inteests Also, the Compan has no commitmentleting to ary of the securd loan
facilities of aty of the dove Triad patnerships.
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N OTE 4. ACQUISITIONS

On Setember 3011998,the Compan acquied four senior Ning comnunities fom NHP br $40,683,281  enteng into a
$32,300,000 magage loan greement with Lehman Bthes Holdings,Inc. (“Lehman”),a cashpayment of $8,246,007 and
assuming net liailities of $137,274The acquisition &s accountedf as a pwhase The Compay's preliminaty purchase pice
allocdion was based on ingendent aludions from third-paty valudion firms.

On October 281998,the Compan acquied a senior Viing comnunity from Tesson Height&nteprises,a Texas limited
patnesship,for $23,051,786yy borowing $15,400,000 psuant to thexasting motgage loan greement with Lehman and $7,376,632
under anxsting line of cedit and assuming $275,154 of nebilides. The Compayy also acquigd a seniorVing comnunity from
Gramecy Hill Enterprises,a Texas limited pamnership,for $11,036,655hy assuming a $6,334,660 npadong with borowing
$1,980,000 fom WMF Washington Magage Cop. (“WMF”) on a second liebasis and $2,425,798 under aisting line of cedit
and assuming net bdities of $296,197The acquisitions @re accountedor as a pwthase The Compayi's peliminary purchase pce
allocaions were based on ingeendent gludions from third-paty valugion firms.

The results of opeaations for the dove acquisitions @& induded in the Compans stdement of income &m the dée of
acquisition.

Pro forma iesults of opettions as if the NHPTesson Heights and @mecy Hill acquisitions had occued on aruary 1,1997
are as bllows:

Year Ended December 31,

1998 1997
Total reverues $56,559,920 $47,082,786
Net income 11,518,250 946,143
Net income per shar $ 0.58 $ 0.08
Shaes used in computing @forma net income per stear 19,717,347 11,150,087

The unaudited prforma consolideed amounts arpresenteddr informational puposes onl and do not necesdlar reflect
the inancial position orgsults of opeations of the Compagnwhich would hare actualy resulted had the acquisitions oaea
on &ruayy 1,1997.

N OTE 5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Propety and equipment consists of thaldéwing:

December 31,

1998 1997

Land $ 10,641,671 $ 2,777,087
Land impovements 6,400 3,906
Buildings and hilding improvements 119,759,970 47,562,214
Fumiture and equipment 4,685,174 2,387,485
Automobiles 73,890 —
Constuoction in pocess 71,611 2,049,574

135,238,716 54,780,266
Less accumlated depreciaion 16,294,763 13,659,818
Propety and equipmentet $118,943,953 $41,120,448

On November 24,1998,the Compan sold land on one of its ppeties for $738,385This sale esulted in a $415,847am
and net cash pceeds of $664,984. On Decembel998,the Compan sold land on another one of itopeties for $12,662.
This sale esulted in theacanition of a $8,545 @n and net cash pceeds of $11,052.

The Compay cepitalized $348,626 of intest as parof building and liilding improvements dung 1998.
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N OTE 6. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued epenses consists of thellbwing:

December 31,

1998 1997
Accrued salaes,boruses andelated expenses $ 847,722 $ 432,249
Accrued popety taxes 538,697 493,796
Other 845,476 333,365
$2,231,895 $1,259,410
N OTE 7. NOTES PAYABLE AND LINE OF CREDIT
Notes paable consists of theoflowing:
December 31,
1998 1997

Lehman $60 million mdgage loan,beaing intelest a prime

or LIBOR plus 1.875% (6.95% ®ecember 311998);

payable in monthy installments of intexst ony, maturing on

October 11999,secued by the cetain popeties of NHPCT $47,700,000 $ —
WMF moitgage loan,beaing intelest & 7.69%; pgable in

monthl installments of pncipal and integst of $48,089,

mauring on Aruary 2008 secled by a cetain popety of Gramery 6,312,032 —
WMF second mdgage loan,beaing intelest & 7.08%; pgable

in monthl installments of pncipal and inteest of $14,095,

maturing on &ruary 2010 secwad ty a cetain popety of Gramecy 1,975,159 —
HCP motgage loanspeaing intelest engng from 6.2% to 10.75%;

payable in monthy installments of $99,212 ihaling inteest,

mauring from 2001 to 2012 seced by cettain piopeties of HCP 6,128,656 6,677,431
62,115,847 6,677,431
Less curent potion 48,419,050 932,664

$13,696,797 $5,744,767

The agregate mdurities of notes pgable & December 311998,are as bllows:

1999 $48,419,050
2000 675,909
2001 561,856
2002 414,654
2003 455,512
Therafter 11,588,866

$62,115,847

In connection with obtaining the Lehman and other 199&gage loansthe Compap incured $569,896 in defred
financing daiges,which are amotized over the lie of the loans using the aight-line methodAccunulated amotization was
$123,727 aDecember 311998.

On December 10,997,the Compan enteed into a $20 millionavolving line of cedit with a bank thiaexpires December
10,2000. Subsequent to December B298,the Compan receved a commitment to inease its line of edit to $34 million.
Borrowings under the line of edit ae secued ty three senior liing comnunities and bear intest & the pime rate or LIBOR
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plus 1.7% (7.33% and 7.42% Recember 311998 and 1997espectiely). The line of cedit ma/ be useddr acquisition
of additional inteests in HCP and NHRcquisition of aditional popeties, development of gpansions to dsting propeties
and gneal working caital puposesAmounts outstanding under the line oédit & December 311998 and 1997yere
$18,974,186 and $1,830,13@spectrely. In connection with obtaining the line ofeclit, the Compan incured $6,847and
$111,533 in 1998 and 199%&spectiely, in deferred fnancing hiaiges,which are amotized over the lie of the line of cdit.
Accurnulated amotization was $41,066 and $3,098 Becember 311998 and 1997%espectiely.

Under the line of @dit, the Compay must maintain ceain levels of tangble net worth and compt with other estictive
covenants.

On dune 30,1997,CSLC enteed into a $77,000,000 ntgege loan greement with Lehman Bthes Holdings,Inc., and
pledged four senior King comnunities and its ivestments in HCP and NHP as cttal. Subsequent taide 30,1997,$70,800,000
was adanced under this loargeement; $5,500,000a8 used togpay a motgage loan and $64,500,000aw used to fund the
liquidity requirrment under the loargeeement though the pwhase of thee-month US. Treasuy Secuities. The US. Treasuy
Secuities were sold under aepurchase greement with a ten equal to their ntarity. The epurchase greement \as cancelled
and the outstanding dewas assumed anépaid by the Coporation from the poceeds of the @éring. The U.S. Treasuy
Secuities reverted to CSLC ér use or disposition as det@ned ly CSLC,and the Companhas no integst in sub secuities.

HCP leasesdur of its popeties under a master leaSéne ientals under the master leasevile adlitional secuity for
two notes pgable used toihance tvo of the master leaseqpeties. These notes ardue December 2001.

N OTE 8. EQUITY

The Compan is authoized to issue mfered sto& in sefes and toik and stée the wting pavers and suls design&ons,
preferences andelaive paticipating, optional or other speciaights of the shas of eab sut seies and the qualifations,
limitations and estictions,thereof. Sut action ma be talen by the Boad without sto&holder gproval.

On November 51997,the Compan issued 10,350,000 shear of $.01 paralue common stdcfor cash of $110,330,915,
net of issuance costs of $11,317,705 anghpnt of the Brmation Note of $18,076,380n connection with the @éring.
Additionally, the Compay issued 7,687,347 stear of $.01 paralue common stécin connection with thedtmation. For financial
reporting puiposesthe shaes issued in connection with therfhaion are presented as outstanding as afuhly 1,1997.

During 1996,the Compay issued 1,680,000 shew of $.01 paralue common stdcfor $16,800 in cash.d¥ financial
reporting puposesas the combined entitieseve under common comt; the Compay's common stdcis presented as outstanding
as of &ruary 1,1996.

Common stok reseved for future issuance is 1,565,000rfstod options.The iights, preferences and prileges of holdes
of common stok are subject to theights of the holder of Pefered Sto&.

Purchases of Bengfial Unit Cetificates (“BUCs”) of CSLC duing 1997 and 1996epresent aditional puchases b the
Stokholdes and a& accountedadrr & the book alue of the BICs and as an dion to patners’ cgpital and a €duction in minaty
interest. CSLC puwhased 55,316 BCs for $960,762 dung 1997,at an aerage cost of $17.37 per unit. CSLC phased 91,854
BUCs for $1,262,355 dimg 1996,at an arerage cost of $13.74 per unit.

Net income (loss) of HCP igeally allocaed 98% to the limited parers and 2% to theemerl patner The net income
of HCP from the disposition of a ppety is allocded: (i) to patners with defcit capital accounts on a prrata basis; (ii) to
limited patners until the/ have been paid an amount equal to the amount of their adjustestritent (as difed); (iii) to the
limited patners until thegy have been allodad income equal to their 12% Liqutaan Preference; and ¥i) thereafter 80% to the
limited patners and 20% to theegenl patner The net loss of HCPdm the disposition of a ppety is allocded: (i) to patners
with positive caital accounts on a prrata basis and (ii) theafter 98% to the limited paners and 2% to theemerl patner.
Distributions of @ailable cash fow are generlly distibuted 98% to the limited perers and 2% to theemeal patner, until the
limited patners have receved an annal peferential distibution, as deiihed Thereafter available cash fow is distibuted 90%
to the limited pamners and 10% to theemenl painer During 1998 HCP epurchased $144,791 of its limited paership inteests.
HCP made a $224,795 distion in 1997 to minadty parners.
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N OTE 9. STOCK OPTIONS

The Compay adopted a stdcoption plan dung 1997,providing for the gant of incentre and nonquaiiéd sto& options to
employees and déectos. This plan povides br the gant of options to pehase up to 1,565,000 skarThe option gercise pice
and \esting povisions of sub options a& fixed when the option isranted The options xpire ten yeass from the dée of gant
and \est flom zero to five yeass. The option gercise pice is the &ir maket value of a sha of common stdcon the de&e the
option is ganted

A summay of the Compayis sto& option actwity, and elaed information for the years ended December 31998 and 1997,
is presented bele:

Weighted
Avera_ge
Exercise

Shares Price
Outstanding ®Jarualy 1, 1997 — —
Granted 776,250 $13.50
Exercised — —
Forfeited — —
Expired — —
Outstanding eDecember 311997 776,250 $13.50
Granted — —
Exercised — —
Forfeited 76,750 13.50
Expired — —
Outstanding eDecember 311998 699,500 $13.50
Exerciseble & December 311998 258,010 $13.50
Exerciseble & December 311997 121,500 $13.50

The weighted &erage remaining contrctual life of the optionstaDecember 311998 and 1997s goproximately 8.8 years
and 9.8 pass, respectiely. Unoptioned shas aailable for the ganting of options tDecember 311998 and 1997 as 865,500
and 788,750respectiely.

The arerage daily price of the stok during 1998 and 1997 subsequent to théeffg was $11.73 and $13.0dspectiely,
per shag, and theefore, the options a considezd anti-dilutve for the calcultion of diluted net income per slear

Pro forma information regarding net income per shehas been detained as if the Comparhad accountedf its emplgee
stodk options under theafr value method of thisstaement.The fair value br these options &s estimeed d the dde of gant using
the Blak-Saholes option gecing model with the dllowing weighted aerage assumptionsisk-free inteest ete of 5.7 pecent;
dividend yield of ero pecent; epected Wes of sgen yeass; and wlatility of 70.1 pecent.The Bladk-Scholes option &lugion
model vas deeloped or use in estintang the &ir value of taded options thdase no \esting estictions and a fully transtrable.
In addition, option \aluaion models equire the input of higlyl subjectve assumptions iheding the &pected stdc price \olatility .
Because the Compgis emplyee stok options hae dhamacteistics signifcantly different from those of sded optionsand
because ltanges in the subjeate input assumptions can teaally affect the &ir value estimge, in man@ements opinion,the
existing models do not necestgprovide a eliable single measerof the &ir value of its emplgee stok options. Br puposes
of pro forma distosures,the estimeed fair value of the options is amared to &pense wer the optionsvesting peiods.

1998 1997
Net income
As reported $11,957,000 $3,681,000
Pro forma 10,848,000 2,787,000
Net income per shar
As reported $ 0.61 $ 0.33
Pro forma 0.55 0.25
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N OTE 10. INCOME TAXES

The povision for income tags consists of thellowing:

Year Ended December 31,

1998 1997 1996
Current:

Fedenl $6,308,319 $730,184 $ —
Stae 1,463,930 101,498 —

Deferred:
Fedeal (240,635) (39,404) —
Stde (55,843) 246 —
$7,475,771 $792,524 $ —

The povision for income tags difered from the amounts computeg bBpplying the US. fedeal income taxate to income
before piovision for income tags as aesult of the dllowing:

Year Ended December 31,

1998 1997 1996

Tax expense dfedenl stdutory rates $6,606,992 $1,521,053 $ —
Tax expense afedenl stdutory rates on income ened

prior to Formation andAsset Puchase — (831,026) —

Stae income taxx@ense 1,420,503 101,744 —

Corversion of S cgporations to C cgporation staus — (41,085) —

Other (551,724) 41,838 —

$7,475,771 $ 792,524 $ —

A summay of the Compayi's dekred tax assets and lidities, are as éllows:

December 31,

1998 1997
Deferred tax assets:
Tax basis in xcess of book basis
anising from theAsset Puchase $ 9,644,505 $10,060,119
Other 1,113,530 128,000
Total dekrred tax assets 10,758,035 10,188,119
Deferred tax lidilities 362,280 88,842
Total dekrred tax assetset $10,395,755 $10,099,277
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N OTE 11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Cettain administative and occupanccosts vere incured by an afiliate on behalf of the Compwrilotal costs allodad to the
Compary were $0,$679,423 and $552,586rfthe yars ended December 31998,1997 and 1996Ggespectiely.

Prior to the Ofering, the Compay paid pemiums to aelaed paty for emplyee medical ceerage. The elaed paty insued
the Compan for ary claims eceeding the mmiums paidAccordingly, no amounts ha been accred @ December 311997,
for daims incured pior to the Ofering but unpaid

The Compayn manaes popeties for a thid paty, in which an oficer of the Companwas also a déctor of the thid-paty
companies untilully 1,1998. Mangement ées eceved for the peiod ended udne 30,1998 and dr the yas ended December 31,
1997 and 1996 are $987,840$1,589,703 and $657,26@spectiely.

Upon sale of thedur NHP popeties on Sptember 301998,an afiliate receved a $1,219,500 bkerage fee

Upon sale of thedur CSLC popeties in November 1997an afiliate receved a $4,597,080 bkerage fee

In October 1997HCP paid an diliate a efinancing te of $13,245.

Upon sale of céain nulti-family propeties in November 1996an afiliate receved a $79,883 lokerage fee

An officer of the Companis chaiman of the boat of a bank were the Compaynholds the majoty of its opegting
cash accounts.

N OTE 12. CONTINGENCIES

OnAugust 11,1998,the Compan executed a settlemengi@ement withAngeles Housing Congés, Inc. (“AHC”) and ILM |
Lease Caporation and ILM Il Lease Cqooration (collectively, “ILM Lease”) resolving all taims among the ptes klaing
to alawsuit fled by AHC against the Companalleging interference withAHC’s mangement greements with ILM (the
“SettlementAgreement”) and callingofr a dismissal with gjudice of this la/suit. The Settlemenigreement did not wolve
ary payment of damges toAHC or ary other paty by the Compan

On or dout October 231998,Robet Lewis filed a putéive dass action complaint on behalf of @n holdes of Assignee
Interests in NHP in the Deheare Cout of Chancey against NHRthe Compaw Cepital Senior Lving Popeties 2-NHPCTInc.
and Caital Realty Goup Senior Housingnc. (collectiely, the “Defendants”). Mr Lewis purchased 9®ssignee Integsts
in February 1993 br $180.The complaint allges,among other thingsha the Deéndants lraded or aided andlzetted a
breat of, the express and implieterms of NHP RartneishipAgreement in connection with the sale ofif popeties by NHP
to Caital Senior Lving Propeties 2-NHPCT Inc. The complaint seekemong otherelief, recission of the sale of these
propeties and unspeddd damages.The Compay believes the complaint is without mieand intends to vigrously defend
itself in this action.

On February 12,1999 a competitor of the Compamoliday Retiement Coporation (“Holiday”), as well as Colson &
Colson Constiction Compan and their ashitects,Cury Brandav Architects,filed suit aainst the Companin U.S. District
Coutt in Dallas.The complaint allges,among otherlaims,tha the Compay infringed the coprighted achitectuml plans and
trade dess of Holidg on & least thee of the Compans comnunities.The comnunities using thisVaterford prototype design
are avned ty Triad I, in which the Compayis a 19% limited paner and povides deelopment sarices under a thi-paty
development greementThe plaintifs are additionally seeking a mliminary and pemanent injunction to bar ftiver use of
their allegedly copyrighted achitectual plans and &ide dess as wll as damges,including punitve damaes.The deénse of
this suit has been toed aer to the Compayis insuer for handling The Compan vigorously denies the alggtions mentioned
in the lavsuit and hasiled an anwer and countefaim.

The Compan has pendinglaims incured in the nanal couse of lusiness thiin the opinion of margementbased on
the adiice of legal counselwill not have a méerial effect on theihancial stteements of the Compgn
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N OTE 13. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carying amounts andafr values of inancial instuments aDecember 311998 and 1997 aras bllows:

1998 1997
Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
Cash and cash eguaients $35,827,270 $35,827,270 $48,125,225 $48,125,225
Line of credit 18,974,186 18,974,186 1,830,130 1,830,130
Notes pgable 62,115,845 62,115,845 6,677,431 6,611,128

The fllowing methods and assumptionsresused in estinteng its fair value distosures br financial instuments:
Cash and cash egalents:The carying amountseported in the balance sheetrfcash and cash egalents gproximate

fair value
Line of credit and notes pable: The fair value of notes pable is estiméd using discounted cadloW anaysis, based
on curent incemental baowing rates br similar types of baowing arangements.

N OTE 14. INVESTMENTS IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

The irvestments in limited parerships balance consists of th@léwing:

December 31,

1998 1997
NHP pension notes $12,646,471 $13,740,576
NHP limited pamership inteests 1,708 1,364
Triad | limited patner inteest 330,243 —
Triad 1l limited patner inteest 74,100 —
Triad 1l limited patner inteest 142,500 —
Triad IV limited patner inteest 142,500 —

$13,337,522 $13,741,940

HCP:

During 1998,1997 and 1996he Compan paid $101,072$5,604,944 and $3,200,68&spectiely, for patnership

interests in HCP ands of December 31,998 and 1997the Compan owned a 57% and 56%wmership in HCPrespectiely.
The Compan changd its method of accountingrfits investment in HCP &m the equity method to the consotida of

HCP in its fnancial stéeements in 1997. Had HCP been consaédan 1996 using its veighted a&erage ovnership inteest of

23%,the esults of opations on a pr forma basisdr the year ended December 311996 would hare been:

Reverue $26,504,461
Income bebre extraodinaly item and mindty interest 1,166,289
Net income 2,118,981

Pro forma net incomgassuming a taxate of 39.5%js $1,281,984.

In the second quter of 1996,CSLC puchased a 9.36% limited paeship inteest in HCP fom an dfiliate. CSLC paid
$1,269,077 to the fifiate, who recaynized a gin of $878,592 on theansactionAs a esult of this purthase the Compan
exceeded a 20%vmership in HCP anditangd its method of accountingofn the cost method to the equity methblde dhange
resulted in ecanizing $3,519,315 of defred income dr the diference betwen cost and the undigng equity in HCPwhich was
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being amaiized over 20 years. At the Ofering dae, the unamaized deéred income \as eliminded as aesult of g@plying the

purchase method of accountingrfCSLCS5 acquisition of HCP limited pareiship units At the Ofering dae, the allocéion of

purchase pice to the assets andbitities of HCP vas based on ingendent alugion information from thid-paty valuaion firms.
Summay financial inbrmation regarding the esults of opetions of HCP 6r fiscal 1996 is asoflows:

Net reverue $7,560,104
Net income 1,637,343

NHP:

The Compan acquied, on November 1,1997,the Rension Notes of NHP'NHP Notes”) avned ty CSLC in the Brmation
Transactionsdr $18,664,128The NHP Notes bear simple ingst & 13% per anam and mture on December 32001. Inteest
is curently paid quatery at a rate of 7%,with the emaining 6% interst deémed Beginning November 1,1997 though
September 301998,the Compan has beenecording inteestincome & 10.5% of the puhase pice paid which was detenined
based on the discounted amount ohgipal and inteestpayments to be madelfowing the méurity date (December 32001)
of the NHP Notes (using a six-montly leetween méurity and full epayment),due to unceainties egarding the ultim#e reat
ization of the acaned inteest. On Sptember 301998,the Compaw purchased éur popeties from NHP NHP is in tun
redeeming $7,500,000 of the Companinvestment in the NHP Notes and is dimiting goproximately $5,300,000 of defred
interest not peviously paid on suls notes. Fom October 11998 though December 31,998,the Compan reevaluaed its
investment in the NHP Noteand is ecoding adlitional income after gving consideation to curent pgment of inteest,
paittial redemption of the NHP Notes with aged inteest and thestimded residual walue in NHPThis change in estimée
resulted in $579,278 of ddtional income in 1998 ($0.03 net income per shiatpact),and is &pected to inaase income
by approximately $3,000,000$2,400,000 an&2,300,000n 1999,2000 and 2001 (NHP Notesdemption is December 3001),
respectiely.

During 1998 and 1998he Compan paid $344 and $1,364espectiely, increasing the wnership of limited pamership
units in NHP to 3.9% &m 3.1%. Subsequent tegrend and thwugh Fbruary 5, 1999,the Compan dishursed $13,500dr an
additional investment in NHP Notes and $3%8 fin aditional investment in NHP unitsThese pwhases bing the Compayis
ownership of NHP Notes to 33.1% and therership of NHP units to 4.8%@.he Compan classifes its irvestment in NHP Notes
as held to marity.

Summay financial inbrmation regarding the nancial position andesults of opeations of NHP as of December 31 and
for the yeass then ended is aslfows:

December 31,

1998 1997

Cash $ 5,821,300 $ 4,495,733
Propety and equipmentet 18,849,354 49,490,473
Other assets 592,146 1,599,634

Total assets $25,262,800 $55,585,840
Pension notes $20,157,826 $42,672,000
Interest pgable 13,142,864 23,730,407
Other liabilities 633,817 1,203,421
Partnership deicit (8,671,707) (12,019,988)

Total ligbilities and patnership deicit $25,262,800 $55,585,840

Year ended December 31,

1998 1997 1996
Net reverue $13,746,088 $15,548,138 $14,488,099
Net income (loss) 3,409,569 (3,522,917) (3,574,668)
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N OTE 15. ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

The components of the allance br doubtful accounts aras éllows:

December 31,

1998 1997 1996
Balance abgginning of year $301,042 $164,822 $141,452
Provision for bad déts 500,000 43,254 22,312
Write-offs and other — (17,474) 1,058
Allowances not assumed in assetchase — (145,602) —
Allowance aising from consolidéon of HCP — 256,042 —
Balance aend of ear $801,042 $301,042 $164,822

N OTE 16. LEASES

The Compan leases its c@orate headquders under an opefing lease gpiring in 2002 Additionally, the senior Ning
comnunities hae enteed into \arious contacts br sewices Dr duition of 5 yeas or less and aron a ée basis as séces ae
rendeed Rent gpense under these leasessv266,590 and $188,984 1998 and 199%espectiely. Futue commitments
are as bllows:

1999 $ 293,023
2000 296,959
2001 303,207
2002 185,931

$ 1,079,120

HCP leases its ppety and equipment to tenants under noncamtelepeeting leasesThe lease tens ange from 9 to 12
yeass with options toenev for adlitional five-year tems and options to pcnase the leasedqgpety at the curent fair maket
value & the end of the initial lease tar The leaseseneally provide for contingnt entals based on the penfnance of the
propety. Contingent ientals ggregated $310,275 and $271,340 in 1998 and 1883pectiely.

Minimum rentals ér the nat two years for the HCP leases&$3,971,328 perear subject to hang based onhanges in
interest mtes. Mininum rentals ae $3,761,262 and $2,858,61% the yeais 2000 and 200There ae no mininum rentals
therafter Propetty and impovements less accurteted dereciaion dtributable to sud rentals amounted to $18,329,061
and$19,339,886 aDecember 311998 and 1997espectiely.

Four of HCPS% senior Wing comnunities ae subject to a master lease with a single @pemRebound Inc., a subsidiay
of HealthSouth Cquoration (“HealthSouth”).This master leas@s amendecatontains a ninegar eneval option and pides br
contingent lentals equal to 4% of theverue diferential,as deihed, effective Jaruaty 30,1997.As of December 311998 and
1997,no contingnt lentals hee been accied on the master leag@ior to Februaly 28,1997,HealthSouth losed tvo of the bur
communities under the master leafespite theselasures,HealthSouth has contied making its full lease pments under the
terms of the master lease
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N OTE 17. OFFICERS’ SALARIES AND BONUS

Geneal and administtive expense inludes oficers’ salares and bouses of $670,00%3,342,360 and $3,371,883r fthe yeas
ended December 31998,1997 and 199Ggespectiely. Compension of the Stokholdes and Coherall officers of the Compan
are based on theiespectie emplgment greements since October11997.

N OTE 18. PRO FORMA INCOME TAXES (UNAUDITED)

The income tags on earings of the S cquorations and panerships br fiscal 1996 anddr the peiod from Jnualy 1, 1997
through October 311997,are the esponsibility of the Stddolders and paners. The po forma adjustmentseflected on the
staements of income assume these $am@tions and panerships vere subject to income tag. Po forma income tax>gense
has been calculed using statory fedenl and stee tax etes,estimaed d 39.5%.

N OTE 19. PRO FORMA RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

Shawn belav are unaudited mr forma consolideed amountsdr the year ended December 31997 and 1996G:espectiely,
representing theasults of opations of the Companfor sud peiods after gving effect to the adjustmentgleting to the
Offering and the Brmation, as if the tansactions had ocaed as of drualy 1, 1996.The unaudited jr forma consolideed
amounts a presenteddr informaional puposes onl and do not necesdarreflect the inancial position oresults of opetions
of the Compay which would hare actualy resulted had the @ing and the Brmaion occured as of drualy 1, 1996,or the
future results of opetions of the Compan

Year Ended December 31,

1997 1996
Total reverues $30,709,882 $26,504,461
Net income 4,991,288 3,396,742
Net income per shar $ 0.25 $ 0.17
Shaes used in computing @forma net income per shear 19,717,347 19,717,347

N OTE 20. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On February 7,1999,the Compan enteed into deihitive Agreements and Plans of Mgr with ILM Senior Lving, Inc.
and ILM Il Senior Lving, Inc. for a combined &msaction alue of gproximately $174 million,which indudes @proximately
$4 million of net lidilities. The pimary assets of ILM Senior king, Inc. and ILM Il Senior Lving, Inc. collectvely are 13
senior lving comnunities tha haze been marged by the Compay under mangement greements since 1996. Under the
meiger ggreementsboth ILM Senior Lving, Inc. and ILM Il Senior Lving, Inc. would sgarately meige with and intaa wholly
owned diect subsidiar of the Compay with the aygregate issued and outstanding sésiof ILM Senior Lving, Inc. and
ILM II Senior Living, Inc. common stok eligible to receve 65% of the meyer consideation in cash (pproximately
$110.5 million) and 35% in 8%orwvertible trust pefered secdities (with a liquidéion value of @proximately $59.5 million).
Both mepgers have beernapproved by the boads of diectos of eab compag and eab transaction equires the pproval of
the gplicable shaeholdes of either ILMSenior Lving, Inc. or ILM Il Senior Living, Inc. The megers also a& subject t@ertain
other customar conditions,including regulaory approvals,and ae expected to be completed dhuy the second half of 1999.
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